
   
Community Development Department 
 
 

Emily Richey, Current Planning Manager 
Tami Anderson, Administrative Assistant 

 

To make a special assistance request, call 739-1220 or email tanderson@midwestcityok.org no less than 24 hours prior to the 
start of a meeting. 

 
AGENDA FOR THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE  

MIDWEST CITY PLANNING COMMISSION 
July 5, 2023 – 6:00 p.m. 
City Council Chambers 

City Hall 
100 North Midwest Boulevard 

 
For purposes of all meetings of the Midwest City elected and/or appointed officials, the term “possible action” shall mean 

possible adoption, rejection, amendments, and/or postponements. 

 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
 

B. MINUTES 
1. Discussion and consideration of adoption, including any possible amendments of the minutes of the May 2, 2023 

Planning Commission Meeting. 
 

C. ANNOUNCEMENTS 
Introduction of newly appointed Planning Commissioner, Mr. Rick Rice and announcing the reappointment of Rick 
Dawkins, Dean Hinton, and Jim Smith. 
 

D. DISCUSSION 
1. (PC-2149) Public hearing, discussion, consideration, and possible action of approval of the Replat of all of Lots 3 

& 4 in Block 1 of Friendly Acres Addition, being more particularly described as follows: Commencing at the 
Northwest Corner of the Northwest Quarter (NW/4) of Section Five (5), Township Eleven (11) North, Range One 
(1) West of the Indian Meridian (I.M.), Oklahoma County, Oklahoma. 
  

2. (PC-2142) Public hearing, discussion, consideration, and possible action of an ordinance to redistrict from Single-
Family Detached Residential District (“R-6”) to Single-Family Detached Residential District (“R-6”) with a 
Special Use Permit (“SUP”) to allow the use of a Group Care Facility as defined in Section 4.3.14 of the 
Ordinances of the City of Midwest City Appendix A for the property described as a part of the Southeast Quarter 
(SE ¼) of Section Twenty-Seven (27), Township Twelve (12) North, Range Two (2) West of the Indian Meridian 
in Oklahoma County, Oklahoma, also known as 106 W. Michael Drive, Midwest City, Oklahoma 73110. 
 

3.  (PC-2143) Public hearing, discussion, consideration, and possible action of an ordinance to redistrict from 
Community Commercial District (“C-3”) to Community Commercial District (“C-3”) with a Special Use Permit 
(“SUP”) to allow the use of a Drinking Establishment: Sit-Down, Alcoholic Beverages Permitted; and 
consideration of a resolution to amend the Comprehensive Plan from Office Retail (“OR”) to Commercial 
(“COM”) for the property described as a part of the Southeast Quarter (SE ¼) of Section Twenty-Seven (27), 
Township Twelve (12) North, Range Two (2) West of the Indian Meridian in Oklahoma County, Oklahoma, also 
known as 7901 NE 10th Street Suite A209, Midwest City, Oklahoma 73110. 

 
4. (PC-2144) Public hearing, discussion, consideration, and possible action of an ordinance to redistrict from Single-

Family Detached Residential District (“R-6”) to Manufactured Home Park District (“R-MH-2”); and consideration 
of a resolution to amend the Comprehensive Plan from Single-Family Detached Residential (“SFD”) to 
Manufactured Home (“MH”) for the property described as a part of the Northwest Quarter (NW ¼) of Section 

mailto:tanderson@midwestcityok.org


 
 
 

Twenty-Five (25), Township Twelve (12) North, Range Two (2) West of the Indian Meridian in Oklahoma 
County, Oklahoma, also known as 2117 Randolph Ave., Midwest City, Oklahoma 73110.  
 

5. (PC-2145) Public hearing, discussion, consideration, and possible action to redistrict from Planned Unit 
Development (“PUD”) governed by Medium Density Residential District (“R-MD”); and consideration of a 
resolution to amend the Comprehensive Plan from Office/Retail (“OR”) to Commercial (“COM”) for the property 
described as a tract of land lying in the Southwest Quarter (SW ¼) of Section Thirty-Four (34), Township Twelve 
(12) North, Range Two (2) West of the Indian Meridian in Oklahoma County, Oklahoma, being more particularly 
described as follows: Commencing at the Southwest corner of said Section 34; Thence N 89°51’43” E along the 
South line of said SW/4 a distance of 798.49 feet; Thence N 00°36’11” W and parallel with the West line of said 
SW/4 a distance of 249.09 feet to the Point of Beginning; Thence continuing N 00°36’11” W and parallel to the 
West line of said SW/4 a distance of 140.70 feet; Thence 89°23’49” E a distance 147.92 feet; Thence S 45°36’11” 
E a distance of 35.36 feet; Thence S 00°36’11” E and a distance of 115.70 feet; Thence S 89°23’49” W a distance 
of 172.92 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING. 
 

6. (PC-2146) Public hearing, discussion, consideration, and possible action to approve the Preliminary Plat of 
Glenhaven for the property described as a tract of land lying in the Southwest Quarter (SW ¼) of Section Thirty-
Four (34), Township Twelve (12) North, Range Two (2) West of the Indian Meridian in Oklahoma County, 
Oklahoma, being more particularly described as follows: Commencing at the Southwest corner of said Section 34; 
Thence N 89°51’43” E along the South line of said SW/4 a distance of 798.49 feet; Thence N 00°36’11” W and 
parallel with the West line of said SW/4 a distance of 249.09 feet to the Point of Beginning; Thence continuing N 
00°36’11” W and parallel to the West line of said SW/4 a distance of 140.70 feet; Thence 89°23’49” E a distance 
147.92 feet; Thence S 45°36’11” E a distance of 35.36 feet; Thence S 00°36’11” E and a distance of 115.70 feet; 
Thence S 89°23’49” W a distance of 172.92 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING. 
 

7. (PC-2147) Public hearing, discussion, consideration, and possible action to approve the Preliminary Plat of Urban 
Edge for the property described as the East Half (E/2) of the Northeast Quarter (NE/4) of the Southwest Quarter 
(SW/4) of the Southeast Quarter (SE/4) of Section Thirty-Five (35), Township Twelve (12) North, Range Two (2) 
West of the Indian Meridian, also addressed as 8610 - 8620 - 8700 E. Main St., Midwest City, OK 73130. 
 

8. (PC-2148) Public hearing, discussion, consideration, and possible action to approve the Final Plat of the 29th & 
Douglas Apartments described as a tract of land being a part of Southwest Quarter (SW/4) of Section Twelve (12), 
Township Eleven (11) North, Range Two (2) West of the Indian Meridian, Midwest City, Oklahoma County, 
Oklahoma, also known as 9309 SE 29TH Street, Midwest City, OK 73130. 
 

9. (PC-2150) Public hearing, discussion, consideration, and possible action of an ordinance to redistrict from 
Community Commercial District (“C-3”) to Medium Density Residential (“R-MD”); and consideration of a 
resolution to amend the Comprehensive Plan from Single-Family Detached Residential (“SFD”) to Medium 
Density Residential (“MDR”) for the property described as a part of the Southwest Quarter (SW ¼) of Section Ten 
(10), Township Eleven (11) North, Range Two (2) West of the Indian Meridian in Oklahoma County, Oklahoma, 
also known as 227 W. Fairchild Dr., Midwest City, Oklahoma 73110. 
 

E. COMMISSION DISCUSSION 
 

F. PUBLIC DISCUSSION 
 

G. FURTHER INFORMATION 
 

H. ADJOURN 



 
MINUTES OF MIDWEST CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

 
May 2nd, 2023 - 6:00 p.m. 

 
This regular meeting of the Midwest City Planning Commission was held in the City Council Chambers, City Hall, 
100 North Midwest Boulevard, Midwest City, Oklahoma County, Oklahoma, on May 2nd, 2023 at 6:00 p.m., with 
the following members present: 
 

Commissioners present:  Russell Smith 
    Jess Huskey 
    Rick Dawkins 
    Jim Smith  
    Dee Collins 

Dean Hinton 
Jim Campbell  

 
Commissioner absent:  Dean Hinton  
     

  Staff present:   Emily Richey, Current Planning Manager  
      Tami Anderson, Administrative Assistant 
      Patrick Menefee, City Engineer 
      Petya Stefanoff, Comprehensive Planner    
   
   

A. CALL TO ORDER 
The meeting was called to order by Chairperson R. Smith at 6:00 p.m. 

 
 

B. MINUTES 
1. A motion was made by D. Collins, seconded by R. Dawkins to approve the minutes of the April 5th, 

2023 Planning Commission meeting as presented. Voting aye: Huskey, R. Smith, Dawkins, Collins, 
J. Smith and Campbell. Nay: none. Motion carried.  

2. A motion was made by J. Huskey, seconded by D. Collins, to approve the minutes of the April 11th, 
2023 Special Meeting of the Planning Commission meeting as presented. Voting aye: Huskey, R. 
Smith, Dawkins, Collins, J. Smith and Campbell. Nay: none. Motion carried. 

 
  

C. NEW MATTERS 
1. Discussion and consideration, for adoption, including any possible amendments of a correction of an 

error in the zoning redistrict of Ordinance No. 3463 approved by the City Council October 26, 2021. 
 
 

A motion was made by Jess Huskey, seconded by Dee Collins, to recommend Approval of this item.  
Voting aye: Huskey, R. Smith, Dawkins, Collins, J. Smith and Campbell. 
 Nay: None. Motion - Carried.  
 

 
 
 
 



Planning Commission Minutes 
May 2nd, 2023 
Page 2 
 
 

2. (PC-2141) Public hearing, discussion, consideration, and possible action of an ordinance to redistrict from 
Planned Unit Development (“PUD”) governed by R-6, Single-Family Detached Residential District (“R-
6”) and Restricted Commercial District (“C-1”) to C-1; and consideration of a resolution to amend the 
Comprehensive Plan from Commercial (“COM”) and Single-Family Detached Residential (“SFD”) to 
COM for the property described as a part of the Southwest Quarter (SW/4) of Section Thirty-Six (36), 
Township Twelve (12) North, Range Two (2) West of the Indian Meridian in Oklahoma County, OK, 
more particularly described as follows, to wit: Beginning at a point 632.02 feet East of the Southwest 
Corner of said SW/4; Thence, North 200 feet; Thence, East 100 feet; Thence South 200 feet; Thence, 
West 100 feet to the point of beginning, also known as 9035 E Reno AV.  
 

 
 

There was general discussion amongst the Commission. 
 
 
The applicant, Bonnie Patterson of 1108 Hunting Ave, OKC, was present and addressed the council and had no 
issues at the time of this PC meeting.  
 
 
 
A motion was made by Jess Huskey, seconded by Dee Collins, to recommend Approval of this item.  
Voting aye: Huskey, R. Smith, Dawkins, Collins, J. Smith and Campbell. 
 Nay: None. Motion - Carried.  
 
 
D. COMMISSION DISCUSSION:   
 
E. PUBLIC DISCUSSION:   
 
F. FURTHER INFORMATION:   
  Updated Public Hearing Notice to Reflect Correction of Scrivener’s Error 
 
G. ADJOURNMENT: 
 
A motion to adjourn was made by Chairman R. Smith, Seconded by Rick Dawkins.  
Voting aye: Huskey, R. Smith, Dawkins, Collins, J. Smith and Campbell. 
Nay: None. Motion - Carried. 
The meeting adjourned at 6:11 p.m.  
 
  
____________________________________ 
 
Chairman Russel Smith 
 
 
(TA) 



   
Community Development Department 
 
 

Emily Richey, Current Planning Manager 
Tami Anderson, Executive Assistant 

 

To:  Chairman and Planning Commission 

From:  Emily Richey, Current Planning Manager  

Date:  July 5, 2023 

Subject: (PC-2142) Public hearing, discussion, consideration, and possible action of an ordinance to 
redistrict from R-6, Single-Family Detached Residential District to R-6, Single-Family Detached Residential 
with a Special Use Permit to allow for the use of a Group Care Facility as defined in 4.31.14. found in the City 
of Midwest City’s Code of Ordinances for the property described as a part of the Southeast Quarter (SE ¼) of 
Section Twenty-Seven (27), Township Twelve (12) North, Range Two (2) West of the Indian Meridian in 
Oklahoma County, Oklahoma, also known as 106 W. Michael Drive, Midwest City, Oklahoma 73110.  

Executive Summary: The applicant, Ms. Athena 
Parker, is requesting to rezone the subject property 
from Single-Family Detached Residential District (“R-
6”) to R-6, Single-Family Detached Residential District 
(“R-6”) with a Special Use Permit (“SUP”) to allow for 
the use of a Group Care Facility. 

The intent of the applicant is to provide a personal care 
home for seniors within their residence. The estimated 
capacity is six (6) seniors and the two (2) current 
occupants. 

If approved, the applicant will need to submit an 
application for Group Residential and Group Care 
Facilities as outlined in Section 5.9.1. in the City of 
Midwest City’s Code of Ordinances and to acquire any 
necessary state licensing. 

At the time of this writing, there has been one phone call from a surrounding property owner in opposition to 
the proposed rezone. The citizen voiced concerns of parking (by residents and visitors), invasion of space, and 
extra noise.  

Potential parking congestion is a concern of staff. Some type of mitigation plan is recommended (e.g., set 
visiting hours, maximum number of visitors at a time, etc.) due to the anticipated increase of traffic/parking 
being unaccustomed to the zoning district.  
 
Both state and public notification requirements were met. 
 
Action is at the discretion of the Planning Commission.  

Dates of Hearing: 
Planning Commission- July 5, 2023    
City Council- July 25, 2023 
 



Page 2                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2142 
 
Date of Pre-Development Meeting: 
May 8, 2023       
                                                                                                                                                                  
Council Ward: Ward 5, Sara Bana 

Owner: Joey & Athena Parker 

Applicant: Athena Parker 

Proposed Use: Group care facility for seniors 

Size: The subject property has a frontage of 60 feet along W. Michael Drive, and a depth of 120 feet, and 
contains an area of 7,200 square feet, more or less.  

Development Proposed by Comprehensive Plan: 
Area of Request- Single Family Detached Residential 
North- Single Family Detached Residential  
South- Single Family Detached Residential 
East- Single Family Detached Residential 
West- Single Family Detached Residential 
 
Zoning Districts: 
Area of Request- Single-Family Detached Residential (“R-6”) 
North- Single-Family Detached Residential District (“R-6”) 
South- Single-Family Detached Residential District (“R-6”) 
East- Single-Family Detached Residential District (“R-6”) 
West- Single-Family Detached Residential District (“R-6”) 
 
Land Use: 
Area of Request- Residential 
North- Residential 
South- Residential 
East- Vacant 
West- Residential 
 
Comprehensive Plan Citation: 
The future zoning land use for the subject lot is Single-Family Detached (“SFD”) Land Use. 
 
4-15 Single-Family Detached (“SFD”) Land Use 
This use is representative of traditional, single-family detached dwelling units. Of the residential categories, it is 
recommended that single-family detached land use continue to account for the largest percentage. The areas 
designated for single-family detached residential land use are generally not adjacent to incompatible land uses, 
and are in proximity to existing single-family residential land use. The City should strive for a range of lot sizes 
to develop, and should reinforce this by providing a choice of several single-family zoning districts with various 
lot sizes in the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
The proposed use is supported by the Comprehensive Plan.  
 

Municipal Code Citation: 



Page 3                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2142 
 
2.7. – R-6, Single-Family Detached Residential District 
2.7.1. General Description. The R-6, Single-Family Detached Residential District is intended for single-family 
residences on lots of not less than 6,000 square feet in size. This district is estimated to yield a maximum 
density of 5.1 gross dwelling units per acre (DUA). 
 
Additional uses for the district shall include churches, schools and public parks in logical neighborhood units. 
 
7.6. – Special Use Permit 7.6.1. General Description and Authorization. The uses listed under the various 
districts as special use permits are so classified because they more intensely dominate the area in which they are 
located than do other uses permitted in the district. 
 (A) Consideration for compatibility. With consideration given to setting, physical features, compatibility  
 with surrounding land uses, traffic, and aesthetics, certain uses may located in an area where they will be 
 compatible with existing or planned land uses. 

(B) Review and approval. The Planning Commission shall review each case on its own merit, apply the 
criteria established herein, and recommend either approval or denial of the special use permit to the City 
Council.  Following the Planning Commission’s recommendation, the City Council shall review each 
case on its own merit, apply the criteria established herein, and, if appropriate, authorize said use by 
granting a special use permit.  
(C) Use identified by individual zoning district. If a special use permit is granted it shall be for all the 
uses permitted in the specified district plus the special use permit requested.  

 
4.3. – Public and Quasi-Public Use Unit Classifications and Regulations 
4.3.14. Group Care Facility. Public, quasi-public or private care facilities that because of the nature and scale of 
their programs are compatible in a residential setting.  
 
Individual residents may occupy the facility on a permanent or temporary basis. Residents may be handicapped, 
aged, disabled, or undergoing rehabilitation or medical treatment, excluding medical or nonmedical 
detoxification as these terms are defined pursuant to 43A O.S. § 3-403. Residents may be assigned 
to facilities by a court, but not as a result of being adjudged criminal, delinquent, or mentally ill. 
 
Typical uses include nursing homes, assisted living centers, group homes for mentally or physically 
handicapped, convalescent homes, homes for the elderly, and homes for dependent and neglected children, 
orphanages. 
 
History: 

1. This property had been zoned residentially since it was platted in November of 1963. 
2. City utility records indicate there has been city water and sewer services since 1984.  

 
Next Steps: 
If Council approves this rezone, the applicant will need to provide the following application requirements as 
found in Section 5.9.1. in the City of Midwest City’s Code of Ordinances. 
 
5.9.1. Group Residential and Group Care Facilities. Prior to the establishment of a new private or quasi-
public facility as defined by § 4.2.8. Group Residential or § 4.3.14. Group Care Facility or when operations 
have ceased at existing private or quasi-public or group care facilities for more than twelve (12) consecutive 
months, in any residential district an application shall be filed with the City. 
 



Page 4                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2142 
 

(A) Application requirements. Such application shall include: 
(1) Legal description of the property and the street address or approximate location of the facility; 
(2) Names and addresses of all those persons or organizations intending to sponsor or operate such 
facility; 
(3) The maximum number of staff and residents at the facility; 
(4) The location of any other group care facility operated by the applicant; and 
(5) Copy of approved license by the State Department of Health, if applicable.  

 
Staff Comments- 

Engineering Staff Comments: 
Note: No engineering improvements are required with this application. 
 
Water Supply and Distribution 
There is a public water main bordering the proposed parcel, a six (6) inch line running along the north side of 
West Michael Drive. Any new building permit will require tying to the public water system as outlined in 
Municipal Code 43-32.  

Sanitary Sewerage Collection and Disposal 
There is a public sewer main bordering the proposed parcel, an eight (8) inch line running along the south side 
boundary. Any new building permit will require tying into the public sewer system as outlined in Municipal 
Code 43-109.  

Streets and Sidewalks 
Access to the parcel is from West Michael Drive using existing drives.  West Michael Drive is classified as a 
local road in the 2008 Comprehensive Plan. Public road and sidewalk improvements are not required as part of 
this application. 

Drainage and Flood Control, Wetlands, and Sediment Control 
The area of request is shown to be in an Area of Minimal Flood Hazard on Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) 
number 40109C0310H, dated December 18th, 2009.  Public drainage and detention improvements are not 
required as part of this application.  

Easements and Right-of-Way 
No further easements or right of way would be required with this application. 

Fire Marshal’s Comments: 
- There are no fire code violations currently noted for the address listed 
- The property is required to meet and maintain the requirements of Midwest City Ordinance Section 15. 
- Occupancy classification of R-4: A facility housing not fewer than 6 and not more than 16 persons 

receiving custodial care shall be classified as Group R-4. This would effectively eliminate the 
requirement of a fire suppression system throughout the facility. 

- Smoke detection shall be required in accordance with IFC Section 907.2.10.2. 
 
Public Works’ Comments: 
Line Maintenance 
Water 

- Currently, there is a 5/8” water meter serving the location.  



Page 5                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2142 
 
Sanitary Sewer 

- No additional comments with this case. 
 

Sanitation  
- No additional comments with this case. 

 
Stormwater 

- No additional comments with this case. 
 
Planning Division: 
Staff met with the applicant May 8, 2023 for a Pre-Development meeting.  
 
If this application is approved, the applicant can proceed with the required application requirements for Group 
Residential and Group Care Facilities.  
 
Potential parking congestion is a concern of staff. Some type of mitigation plan is recommended (e.g., set 
visiting hours, maximum number of visitors at a time, etc.).  
 
Action is at the discretion of the Planning Commission. 

Action Required: 
Approve or reject the ordinance to redistrict to Single-Family Residential District with a Special Use Permit to 
allow for the operation of a Group Care Facility for the property noted herein, subject to staff comments as 
found in the July 5, 2023 agenda packet and made part of PC-2142 file. 
 
Please feel free to contact my office at (405) 739-1223 with any questions. 
 
 
 

 

Emily Richey  

Current Planning Manager 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 6                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2142 
 

 



Page 7                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2142 
 

 



Page 8                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2142 
 

 



Page 9                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2142 
 

 



Page 10                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2142 
 

 



Page 11                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2142 
 

 



Page 12                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2142 
 

 



Page 13                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2142 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 



   
Community Development Department 
 
 

 

Emily Richey, Current Planning Manager 
Tami Anderson, Executive Assistant 

 

To:  Chairman and Planning Commission   

From:  Emily Richey, Current Planning Manager  

Date:  July 5, 2023 

Subject: (PC-2143) Public hearing, discussion, consideration, and possible action of an ordinance to 
redistrict from C-3, Community Commercial District to C-3, Community Commercial District with a Special 
Use Permit to allow for the use of a Drinking Establishment: Sit-Down, Alcoholic Beverages Permitted as 
defined in 4.4.22. found in the City of Midwest City’s Code of Ordinances, and a resolution to amend the 
Comprehensive Plan from OR, Office/Retail to COM, Commercial for the property described as a part of the 
Southeast Quarter (SE ¼) of Section Twenty-Seven (27), Township Twelve (12) North, Range Two (2) West of 
the Indian Meridian in Oklahoma County, Oklahoma, also known as 7901 NE 10th Street Suite A209, Midwest 
City, Oklahoma 73110. 

Executive Summary: The applicant, Ms. Cheryl Jackson, is requesting to rezone the subject property from 
Community Commercial District (“C-3”) to Community Commercial District (“C-3”) with a Special Use Permit 
(“SUP”) to allow the use of a Drinking Establishment: Sit-Down, Alcoholic Beverages Permitted.                                                                                                                                                            

Staff from Community Development, Engineering and 
Construction Services, Fire Marshal’s Office, and Line 
Maintenance performed a General Walk-Through 
Inspection, requested by applicant, for the location on March 
9, 2023. Unpermitted work was found by inspectors. It was 
recommended to Ms. Jackson to not proceed with 
remodeling until the rezone of the suite is approved.  
 
Suite will require a Change of Occupancy usage. If this 
application is approved, the applicant can proceed with the 
submission of the appropriate building permits (e.g., 
remodel), and then for a Certificate of Occupancy through 
the Engineering and Construction Services office. Applicant will also need any applicable Health Department 
license(s) and/or ABLE license(s). 
 
Letter of Compliance for ABLE Commission cannot be issued until the required compliance has been met.  
 
Staff would like it noted that a formal review of all appropriate departments will be conducted when plans have 
been officially submitted, and subject to change depending upon the scope of work.  
 
Both state and local public notification requirements were met.  
 
At the time of this writing, staff has not received any comments regarding this case.  
 
Action is at the discretion of the Planning Commission. 
 



Page 2                                                                                                                                                     July 5, 2023              
PC-2143 
 

 

Dates of Hearing: 
Planning Commission- July 5, 2023    
City Council- July 25, 2023 
 
Date of Pre-Development Meeting: 
February 20, 2023       
                                                                                                                                                                  
Council Ward: Ward 5, Sara Bana 

Owner: John McHughes 

Applicant: Cheryl Jackson 

Proposed Use: Shi’ Sips Winery, Satellite Testing Room 

Development Proposed by Comprehensive Plan: 
Area of Request- Office/Retail  
North- High Density Residential 
South- Public/Semi-Public 
East- Parks/Open Space 
West- High Density Residential 
 
Zoning Districts: 
Area of Request- Community Commercial District (“C-3”) 
North- Planned Unit Development (“PUD”) 
South- Planned Unit Development (“PUD”) 
East- Single Family Detached Residential (“R-6”) 
West- Planned Unit Development (“PUD”) 
 
Land Use: 
Area of Request- Midwest Office Park 
North- Fairfax Apartments 
South- Atkinson Heritage Center 
East- Vacant 
West- Fairfax Apartments 
 
Comprehensive Plan Citation: 
The future zoning land use for the subject lots are SFD, Single-Family Detached Land Use. 
 
4-20 Commercial Land Uses 
Areas designated for commercial land use are intended for a variety of commercial uses and establishments with 
outside storage, display and sales. Examples of such uses include automobile-related services, manufactured 
home sales, self-storage units, welding shops, and pawnshops. Commercial uses often locate along major 
thoroughfares not because they need the visibility, as retail uses generally do, but because they need the 
accessibility. The challenge lies in the fact that commercial uses often have a greater need for outside storage 
areas and these areas tend to lessen the visual quality of major thoroughfares. 
 
It should be noted that within recommended commercial areas, office uses and retail uses should be permitted as 
well; however, most commercial uses should not be permitted with office/retail areas. 



Page 3                                                                                                                                                     July 5, 2023              
PC-2143 
 

 

The proposed use is not supported by the Comprehensive Plan due to commercial uses being requested within 
office/retail areas, therefore a resolution to the Comprehensive Plan must be made.  
 
Municipal Code Citation: 
2.20. – C-3, Community Commercial District 
2.20.1. General Description. This commercial district is intended for the conduct of business activity which is 
located at the edge of residential areas but which serves a larger trade area than the immediately surrounding 
residential neighborhoods. 
 
Business uses will most often be found in a wide variety of commercial structures, normally on individual sites 
with separate ingress, egress, and parking. Because of the varied uses permitted, it is important to be separated 
as much as possible visually and physically from any nearby residential areas and to limit the harmful effects of 
increased traffic, noise, and general nonresidential activity which will be generated. 
 
Traffic generated by the uses permitted shall be primarily passenger vehicles and only those trucks and 
commercial vehicles required for stocking and delivery of retail goods.  
 
7.6. – Special Use Permit 
7.6.1. General Description and Authorization. The uses listed under the various districts as special use permits 
are so classified because they more intensely dominate the area in which they are located than do other uses 
permitted in the district. 
 (A) Consideration for compatibility. With consideration given to setting, physical features, compatibility  
 with surrounding land uses, traffic, and aesthetics, certain uses may located in an area where they will be 
 compatible with existing or planned land uses. 

(B) Review and approval. The Planning Commission shall review each case on its own merit, apply the 
criteria established herein, and recommend either approval or denial of the special use permit to the City 
Council.  
Following the Planning Commission’s recommendation, the City Council shall review each case on its 
own merit, apply the criteria established herein, and, if appropriate, authorize said use by granting a 
special use permit.  
(C) Use identified by individual zoning district. If a special use permit is granted it shall be for all the 
uses permitted in the specified district plus the special use permit requested.  

 
History: 

1. This property is served by a 2” master water meter. 
2. No Special Use Permits have been issued in the past for this Office Park.  

 
Next Steps: 
If Council approves this rezone, the applicant will then apply for the necessary building permits, then Certificate 
of Occupancy.  
 
Staff Comments- 

Engineering Staff Comments: 
Note: No engineering improvements are required with this application. 
 
Water Supply and Distribution 



Page 4                                                                                                                                                     July 5, 2023              
PC-2143 
 

 

There is a public water main bordering the proposed parcel, a six (6) inch line running along the west side 
boundary.  Any new building permit will require tying to the public water system as outlined in Municipal Code 
43-32.  

Sanitary Sewerage Collection and Disposal 
There is a public sewer main bordering the proposed parcel, an eight (8) inch line running along to the north 
east corner of the property. Any new building permit will require tying into the public sewer system as outlined 
in Municipal Code 43-109. 

Streets and Sidewalks 
Access to the parcel is from N.E. 10th Street using existing drives.  N.E. 10th Street is classified as a secondary 
arterial road in the 2008 Comprehensive Plan. Public road and sidewalk improvements are not required as part 
of this application. 

Drainage and Flood Control, Wetlands, and Sediment Control 
The area of request is shown to be in the 100 year Flood Hazard Area on Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) 
number 40109C0310H, dated December 18th, 2009.  Public drainage and detention improvements are not 
required as part of this application.  

Easements and Right-of-Way 
No further easements or right of way would be required with this application. 

Fire Marshal’s Comments: 
- The property is required to meet and maintain the requirements of Midwest City Ordinances Section 15. 
- Fire separation between floors, ceilings, and adjoining spaces must be maintained OR constructed in 

accordance with IBC Section 508.4. 
 

*Please note, the suite is located on the second floor of the office complex, and required remodel may 
interfere with the operation of the adjacent suites. 
 
Public Works’ Comments: 
Line Maintenance 
Water 

- This property is served by a 2” master meter. 
- No planned water improvements with existing structure. 

 
Sanitary Sewer 

- Food service facilities shall conform to Midwest City Code of Ordinance 43 Division 6.  
- Applicant will be required to submit a full review that includes, but not limited to: menu, food service, 

cleanup, etc. 
- Applicant will be required to install a 1000 gallon interceptor or apply for a variance that allows a 

smaller device.  
 
Sanitation 

- No additional comments with this case. 
 
Stormwater 



Page 5                                                                                                                                                     July 5, 2023              
PC-2143 
 

 

- No additional comments with this case.  
 
Planning Division: 
Staff met with the applicant February 20, 2023 for a Pre-Development meeting.  
 
Staff from Community Development, Engineering and Construction Services, Fire Marshal’s Office, and Line 
Maintenance performed a General Walk-Through Inspection, requested by applicant, for the location on March 
9, 2023. Unpermitted work was found by inspectors. It was recommended to Ms. Jackson to not proceed with 
remodeling until the rezone of the suite is approved.   
 
If this application is approved, the applicant can proceed with the submission of the appropriate building 
permits (e.g., remodel), and then for a Certificate of Occupancy through the Engineering and Construction 
Services office. Applicant will also need any applicable Health Department licenses. 
 
Letter of Compliance for ABLE Commission cannot be issued until the required compliance has been met.  
 
This application is for the selling/serving of wine, but other uses within the suite have been discussed by the 
applicant, such as serving food to customers as well as partnering with an after-school program to provide meals 
to students. All uses will need to be disclosed to staff at time of application for Certificate of Occupancy. 
 
Staff would like it noted that a formal review of all appropriate departments will be conducted when plans have 
been officially submitted, and subject to change depending upon the scope of work.  
 
Action is at the discretion of the Planning Commission. 

Action Required: 
Approve or reject the ordinance to redistrict from Community Commercial District (“C-3”) to Community 
Commercial District (“C-3”) with a Special Use Permit (“SUP”) to allow for the operation of a sit-down 
drinking establishment, and a resolution to amend the Comprehensive Plan from Office/Retail (“OR”) to 
Commercial (“COM”) for the  property noted herein, subject to staff comments as found in the July 5, 2023 
agenda packet and made part of PC-2143 file. 
 
Suggested Motion: 
 
“To approve the ordinance redistricting 7901 NE 10th Street Suite A209 to the Community Commercial 
zoning district with a Special Use Permit to allow for the operation of a sit-down drinking establishment 
permitting alcohol, and a resolution to amend the Comprehensive Plan to Commercial use subject to Staff 
Comments found in the July 5, 2023 Planning Commission agenda packet and made a part of the PC-2143 
file contingent upon permanent Certificate of Occupancy issuance by Chief Building Official.” 
 
Please feel free to contact my office at (405) 739-1223 with any questions. 
 

 

Emily Richey  

Current Planning Manager 



Page 6                                                                                                                                                     July 5, 2023              
PC-2143 
 

 

 



Page 7                                                                                                                                                     July 5, 2023              
PC-2143 
 

 

 



Page 8                                                                                                                                                     July 5, 2023              
PC-2143 
 

 
 



Page 9                                                                                                                                                     July 5, 2023              
PC-2143 
 

 

 



Page 10                                                                                                                                                     July 5, 
2023              
PC-2143 
 

 
 



   
Community Development Department 
 
 

Emily Richey, Current Planning Manager 
Tami Anderson, Executive Assistant 

 

To:  Chairman and Planning Commission 

From:  Emily Richey, Current Planning Manager  

Date:  July 5, 2023 

Subject: (PC-2144) Public hearing, discussion, consideration, and possible action of an ordinance to 
redistrict from Single-Family Detached Residential District (“R-6”) to Manufactured Home Park District (“R-
MH-2”) and a resolution to amend the Comprehensive Plan from Single-Family Detached Residential (“SFD) to 
Manufactured Home (“MH”), for the property described as a part of the Northwest Quarter (NW ¼) of Section 
Twenty-Five (25), Township Twelve (12) North, Range Two (2) West of the Indian Meridian in Oklahoma 
County, Oklahoma, also known as 2117 Randolph Ave., Midwest City, Oklahoma 73110. 

Executive Summary: The applicant, Mr. John Carroll, 
is requesting to rezone the subject property from 
Single-Family Detached Residential District (“R-6”) to 
Manufactured Home Park District (“R-MH-2”) and to 
amend the Comprehensive Plan from Single Family 
Detached Residential (“SFD”) to Manufactured Home 
(“MH”). 

Mr. Carroll is proposing a recreational vehicle resort for 
the property. He plans to have 106 lots and a swimming 
pool. The maximum intensity of development per 
Municipal Code for travel trailers are no more than 
fifteen (15) per gross acre for a travel trailer park, 105 
lots would be the maximum allowed, and would have to 
meet all other development regulations. 

The proposed recreational vehicle facility does not meet 
the criteria for on-site waste disposal (Midwest City Municipal Code Section 43-115, found on page 6 of 
report). Therefore, the property owner will be responsible for finding means of proper waste disposal outside of 
Midwest City limits.   

The existing roadway is approximately 16’-18’ wide, asphalt, and in poor surface condition. The subject zoning 
would suggest a typical RV which is not necessarily suitable to the existing conditions and should be taken into 
consideration.  

If rezone is approved, the applicant will then proceed with the preliminary and final plat processes, including all 
necessary public improvements. Building permits cannot be pulled until approval of the final plat.  

Both state and public notification requirements were met. 

At the time of this writing, staff has not received any comments regarding this case.  

Action is at the discretion of the Planning Commission.  

Dates of Hearing: 



Page 2                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2144 
 
Planning Commission- July 5, 2023    
City Council- July 25, 2023 
 
Date of Pre-Development Meeting: 
March 9, 2023   
                                                                                                                                                                  
Council Ward: Ward 5, Sara Bana 

Owner: Keith and Charonna Kay Peoples 

Applicant: John Carroll 

Proposed Use: Recreational Vehicle Resort 

Size: The subject property has a frontage of 551 feet along Randolph Avenue, and a depth of 553 feet, and 
contains an area of 7 acres, more or less.  

Development Proposed by Comprehensive Plan: 
Area of Request- Single-Family Detached Residential 
North- Single-Family Detached Residential; Commercial 
South- Single-Family Detached Residential  
East- Single-Family Detached Residential  
West- Manufactured Home  
 
Zoning Districts: 
Area of Request- Single-Family Detached Residential (“R-6”) 
North- Single-Family Detached Residential (“R-6”)  
South- Planned Unit Development (“PUD”) governed by Two-Family Attached Residential District (“R-2F”) 
East- Single-Family Detached Residential (“R-6”) 
West- Planned Unit Development (“PUD”) governed by Medium Density Residential District (“R-MD”) 
 
Land Use: 
Area of Request- Vacant 
North- Vacant 
South- Vacant 
East- Residential 
West- Vacant 
 
Comprehensive Plan Citation: 
The future zoning land use for the subject lots are SFD, Single-Family Detached Land Use. 
 
Single-Family Detached (SFD) Land Use 
This use is representative of traditional, single-family detached dwelling units. Of the residential categories, it is 
recommended that single-family detached land use continue to account for the largest percentage. The areas 
designated for single-family detached residential land use are generally not adjacent to incompatible land uses, 
and are in proximity to existing single-family residential use. The City should strive for a range of lot sizes to 
develop, and should reinforce this by providing a choice of several single-family zoning districts with various 
lot sizes in the Zoning Ordinance. 
 



Page 3                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2144 
 
The proposed use is not supported by the Comprehensive Plan, therefore a resolution to the Comprehensive 
Plan must be made.  
 
Municipal Code Citation: 
2.12. – R-MH-2, Manufactured Home Park District 
2.12.1. General Description. This district permits locations for manufactured home parks which, while 
providing a residential environment, are not generally compatible with normal single-family and two-family 
residential developments. 
 
These parks are under single ownership and provide leased or rented manufactured home spaces. 
 
This district should provide for an orderly arrangement of home sites in manufactured home parks that have 
been located and designed in a manner that will promote and protect the health, safety, and general welfare of 
the residents. 
 
2.12.2. District Use Regulations. Property and buildings in the R-MH-2, Manufactured Home Park District shall 
be used only for the purposes listed within Table 4.9-1: Use Chart (Page 75). 
 
2.12.3. Development Regulations. Property and buildings shall conform to the related standards listed within 
Table 3.2-1: Residential Area Regulations and Standards Chart (Page 47) and Section 5 Supplemental 
Regulations (Page 81). 
 
(A) Minimum manufactured home park size and standards. The minimum area of any park shall be five (5) 
acres. In addition to the regulations contained within this section, Chapter 23 (Reference Chapter 35 of 1972 
Code) Manufactured Home Parks and Subdivisions should also be consulted for regulations pertaining to 
manufactured homes. 
(B) Maximum intensity of development. Intensity of development shall be limited to no more than ten (10) 
manufactured homes per gross acre for a manufactured home park and no more than fifteen (15) travel trailers 
per gross acre for a travel trailer park. 
(C) Manufactured home spaces. Each manufactured home and travel trailer space shall have a minimum of not 
less than four thousand (4,000) square feet exclusive of parkland, access drive right-of-way and any other area 
which is a part of a community facility. 
(D) Screening and landscaping requirements. Manufactured home subdivisions shall be screened and 
landscaped in accordance with the provisions in 5.2 Screening and Landscaping (Page 81). 
(E) Off-street parking, loading and access. All uses shall contain adequate space on private property to provide 
for parking, loading, and maneuvering of vehicles in accordance with regulations established in 5.3 Parking and 
Loading (Page 91) of which Table 5.3-2: Specific Parking Requirements (Page 98) is included. 
(F) Site plan. A site plan shall be prepared in accordance with 7.5 Site Plan (Page 183) for any 4.2.3. 
Townhouse (Single-Family Attached) (Page 50), 4.2.4. Multifamily Residential (Page 50), or 4.2.8. Group 
Residential (Page 51) type use. 
 
History: 

1. This property is unplatted. 
2. This property has historically been zoned residentially.  

 
Next Steps: 



Page 4                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2144 
 
If Council approves this rezone, the applicant will then proceed with the preliminary plat process, which begins 
with a pre-development meeting with applicant and City staff. After the preliminary plat is approved by 
Council, applicant can begin any public improvement requirements. When those requirements have been 
satisfied to City standards, the final plat can be applied for. 
 
Building permits can be pulled after the final plat approval. 
Staff Comments- 

Engineering Staff Comments: 
Note: No engineering improvements are required with this application. 
 
Water Supply and Distribution 
There is a public water main bordering the proposed parcel, a six (6) inch line running along the west side of 
2117 Randolph Avenue.  Any new building permit will require tying to the public water system as outlined in 
Municipal Code 43-32.  

At time of building, the water main will be required to be extended and potentially looped to eliminate dead 
ends per Municipal Code 43-32. 

Sanitary Sewerage Collection and Disposal 
There is no sanitary sewer adjacent to this area. It is located approximately 350 feet east of the area of request. 
Any new building permit or plat application will require extension of the sanitary system and tying into the 
public sewer system as outlined in Municipal Code 43-109.  

Recreational vehicles have additional requirements per Municipal Code 43-115. 

Streets and Sidewalks 
Access to the parcel is from Randolph Avenue. Randolph Avenue parallels the east side of the property and is 
classified as a local road in the 2008 Comprehensive Plan. Sidewalk and half street improvements will be 
required with a building permit along Randolph Avenue.  The existing roadway is approximately 16-18’ wide, 
asphalt, and in poor surface condition. Drainage in the area is by roadside ditch. 

The subject zoning would suggest a typical RV which is not necessarily suitable to the existing conditions and 
should be taken into consideration.  

Drainage and Flood Control, Wetlands, and Sediment Control 
The area of request is shown to be in an Area of Minimal Flood Hazard on Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) 
number 40109C0310H, dated December 18, 2009. Public drainage and detention improvements are not required 
as part of this application. 

Easements and Right-of-Way 
No further easements or right of way would be required with this application. 

Engineering Photos 



Page 5                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2144 
 

 

 

Fire Marshal’s Comments: 
The property is required to meet and maintain the requirements of Midwest City Ordinances Section 15. 
 
Public Works’ Comments: 
Line Maintenance 
Water 



Page 6                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2144 
 

- Any required water main extension shall be a designed looped system to eliminate dead ends. Fire 
hydrant locations shall be installed per City of Midwest City’s Code of Ordinances Section 15-22. 

- Water main extension plans shall be approved by Oklahoma Department of Environmental Quality 
(ODEQ) and the City of Midwest City prior to Line Maintenance approval of building permit(s). 

 
- Water meter(s) shall be installed in “green belt” per City of Midwest City’s Code of Ordinances Section 

43-54. 
 
Sewer 

- Sewer main extension plans shall be approved by Oklahoma Department of Environmental Quality 
(ODEQ) and the City of Midwest City prior to Line Maintenance approval of building permit(s). 

 
- Recreational Vehicle facilities shall not allow disposal of waste excluding establishments that sell, 

perform maintenance or rejuvenate recreational vehicles per Midwest City Municipal Code. 
 
Midwest City Municipal Code Section 43-115. - Recreational vehicles (R.V.'s) disposal station. 

 
(a) Only establishments that sell, perform maintenance or rejuvenate recreational vehicles shall 
be authorized to install or operate a disposal station within the city limits of Midwest City. 
Owner/operators of disposal stations shall allow both Midwest City residents who own R.V.'s 
and transit recreational vehicle owners to utilize their facility. This service may be provided at no 
charge to the customer, or if there is a charge the city shall receive fifty (50) percent of said 
charge for utilizing the city's sewer facilities. Disposal sites for the general public shall be made 
available only during normal business hours. 

 
(b) Only recreational vehicles shall be authorized to utilize disposal stations and shall be limited 
to a maximum of one hundred (100) gallons waste per recreational vehicle. No septic tanks, 
grease traps or port-o-pots shall be authorized to utilize any disposal site within Midwest City. 

 
(c) Owner/operators shall display signs stating the following information: Hours of operation; for 
recreational vehicle use only; no commercial dumping; and users shall clean site after each use. 

 
(d) Disposal sites shall be installed and maintained in accordance with the BOCA plumbing 
code. The pad shall be constructed in such a manner that drainage from roofs or water runoffs 
shall not enter the disposal opening. Such opening shall be watertight when not in use and be 
fitted with a foot operated flush valve. Potable water shall be made available through a frost free 
plug for cleaning of the disposal station after use. 

 
(e) Disposal station shall be subject to inspection by Midwest City's plumbing inspector and/or 
industrial waste monitor.  

 

- All unused sewer service(s) shall be made water tight to eliminate Inflow and Infiltration (“I&I”). 
 
Midwest City Municipal Code Section 43-272.- Prohibited discharge standards. 



Page 7                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2144 
 

(12) Stormwater, surface water, groundwater, artesian well water, roof runoff, subsurface 
drainage, condensate, deionized water, noncontact cooling water and unpolluted wastewater, 
unless specifically authorized by the Environmental Services Director. 

Sanitation 
- The property is required to meet and maintain Midwest City Ordinance No. 3427 (attached, pages 13-

14) regarding trash dumpster(s) and enclosure before Certificate of Occupancy can be approved.   
 
Stormwater 

- No additional comments with this case. 
 
Planning Division: 
Staff met with the applicant March 9, 2023 for a Pre-Development meeting.  
 
Per Municipal Code, a recreational vehicle is defined as “vehicle which is (i) built on a single chassis; (ii) 400 
square feet or less when measured at the largest horizontal projections; (iii) designed to be self-propelled or 
permanently towable by a light duty truck; and (iv) designed primarily not for use as a permanent dwelling but 
as temporary living quarters for recreational, camping, travel, or seasonal use.” 
 
If this application is approved, the applicant will then go through the preliminary plat and final plat processes.  
 
Building permits cannot be pulled until approval of final plat.  
 
Please note, applicant will have to prove adequate off-site waste disposal outside of Midwest City limits. 
 
Action is at the discretion of the Planning Commission. 

Action Required: 
Approve or reject the ordinance to redistrict from Single-Family Detached Residential District (“R-6”) to 
Manufactured Home Park District (“MH-2”) and to amend the Comprehensive Plan from Single-Family 
Detached Residential (“SFD”) to Manufactured Home (“MH”) for the property noted herein, subject to staff 
comments as found in the July 5, 2023 agenda packet and made part of PC-2144 file. 
 
Suggested Motion: 
 
“To approve the ordinance redistricting 2117 Randolph Avenue to the Manufactured Home Park zoning 
district, and a resolution to amend the Comprehensive Plan to Manufactured Home use subject to Staff 
Comments found in the July 5, 2023 Planning Commission agenda packet and made a part of the PC-2144 
file.” 
 
Please feel free to contact my office at (405) 739-1223 with any questions. 
 
 

 

Emily Richey  

Current Planning Manager 



Page 8                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2144 
 

 



Page 9                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2144 
 

 



Page 10                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2144 
 

 



Page 11                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2144 
 

 



Page 12                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2144 
 

 



Page 13                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2144 
 

 



Page 14                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2144 
 

 



Page 15                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2144 
 

 



Page 16                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2144 
 

 



Page 17                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2144 
 

 



Page 18                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2144 
 

 



Page 19                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2144 
 

 



Page 20                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2144 
 

 



Page 21                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2144 
 

 



Page 22                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2144 
 

Conceptual Photos 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 23                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2144 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



   
Community Development Department 
 
 

Emily Richey, Current Planning Manager 
Tami Anderson, Executive Assistant 

 

To:  Chairman and Planning Commission 

From:  Emily Richey, Current Planning Manager  

Date:  July 5, 2023 

Subject: (PC-2145) Public hearing, discussion, consideration, and possible action of an ordinance to 
redistrict from Planned Unit Development (“PUD”) governed by Medium Density Residential District (“R-
MD”)  to Community Commercial District (“C-3”); and consideration for a resolution to amend the 
Comprehensive Plan from Office/Retail (“OR”) to Commercial (“COM”), for the property described as a tract 
of land lying in the Southwest Quarter (SW ¼) of Section Thirty-Four (34), Township Twelve (12) North, 
Range Two (2) West of the Indian Meridian in Oklahoma County, Oklahoma, being more particularly described 
as follows: Commencing at the Southwest corner of said Section 34; Thence N 89°51’43” E along the South 
line of said SW/4 a distance of 798.49 feet; Thence N 00°36’11” W and parallel with the West line of said 
SW/4 a distance of 249.09 feet to the Point of Beginning; Thence continuing N 00°36’11” W and parallel to the 
West line of said SW/4 a distance of 140.70 feet; Thence 89°23’49” E a distance 147.92 feet; Thence S 
45°36’11” E a distance of 35.36 feet; Thence S 00°36’11” E and a distance of 115.70 feet; Thence S 89°23’49” 
W a distance of 172.92 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING.  

Executive Summary: The applicant, Grubbs 
Consulting (on behalf of owner), is requesting to rezone 
the subject property from Planned Unit Development 
(“PUD”) governed by Medium Density Residential 
District (“R-MD”) to Community Commercial District 
(“C-3”), and to amend the Comprehensive Plan 
Residential from Office/Retail (“OR”) to Commercial 
(“COM”).  

The applicant’s request for rezone is for 
accommodation to permit a carwash. If approved, any 
allowable use classification within the Community 
Commercial District (“C-3”) would be permitted.   

The applicant hired Traffic Engineering Consultants, 
Inc. to conduct a comparison of the traffic impacts 
between the originally proposed Glenhaven Residential 
Development and the revised Glenhaven Development. The study is attached to this case packet.  

At the time of this writing, there has been one surrounding property owner in opposition to the proposed rezone 
due to there not being a buffer between the residential and commercial areas and added traffic.  

Property abutting a residential district shall be screened and landscaped in accordance with Municipal Code.  

Both state and local public notification requirements were met. 

Action is at the discretion of the Planning Commission.  

Dates of Hearing: 



Page 2                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2145 
 
Planning Commission- July 5, 2023    
City Council- July 25, 2023 
 
Date of Pre-Development Meeting: 
May 9, 2023       
 
Council Ward: Ward 4, Sean Reed 
 
Owner: Bentwood Investments, LLC. 

Applicant: Grubbs Consulting (on behalf of owner) 

Proposed Use: Carwash  

Size: The subject property has a frontage of 115 feet along E. Reno Avenue, and a depth of 172 feet, and 
contains an area of 24,017 square feet, more or less.  

Development Proposed by Comprehensive Plan: 
Area of Request- Office/Retail 
North- Single-Family Detached Residential 
South- Office/Retail 
East- Office/Retail 
West- Office/Retail 
 
Zoning Districts: 
Area of Request- Planned Unit Development (“PUD”) governed by Medium Density Residential District (“R-
MD”) 
North- Planned Unit Development (“PUD”) governed by Medium Density Residential District (“R-MD”) 
South- Community Commercial District (“C-3”) 
East- Community Commercial District (“C-3”) 
West- Community Commercial District (“C-3”) 
 
Land Use: 
Area of Request- Vacant 
North- Vacant 
South- Residential 
East- Mark’s Pharmacy; Just me and the Kidz Daycare 
West- Vacant commercial building 
 
Comprehensive Plan Citation: 
The future zoning land use for the subject lot is Office/Retail (“OR”).  
 
Office/Retail Land Use 
Retail land uses areas are intended to provide for a variety of retail trade, personal, and business services and 
establishments. Retail establishments generally require greater visibility than do other types of non-residential 
land uses (e.g., office, commercial). 
 



Page 3                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2145 
 
Office uses include professional offices for lawyers, doctors, realtors, and other professionals. Office land uses 
are generally appropriate in all other non-residential areas of the City. Office development should be compatible 
with any adjacent residential area.  
 
The proposed use is not supported by the Comprehensive Plan, therefore a resolution to the Comprehensive 
Plan must be approved.  
 
Municipal Code Citation: 
2.20. – C-3, Community Commercial District 
2.20.1. General Description. This commercial district is intended for the conduct of business activity which is 
located at the edge of residential areas but which serves a larger trade area than the immediately surrounding 
residential neighborhoods. 
 
Business uses will most often be found in a wide variety of commercial structures, normally on individual sites 
with separate ingress, egress, and parking. Because of the varied uses permitted, it is important to be separated 
as much as possible visually and physically from any nearby residential areas and to limit the harmful effects of 
increased traffic, noise, and general nonresidential activity which will be generated. 
 
Limited outdoor storage and limited open display, shall be permitted. 
 
Traffic generated by the uses permitted shall be primarily passenger vehicles and only those trucks and 
commercial vehicles required for stocking and delivery of retail goods.  
 
History: 

1. (PC-2099) December 2021- Northern portion of subject property was included in rezone from 
Community Commercial District (“C-3”) to Planned Unit Development (“PUD”) governed by Medium 
Density Residential (“R-MD”).  

2. (PC-2124) September 2022- Northern portion of subject property was rezoned back to Community 
Commercial District (“C-3”). 

 
Next Steps: 
If Council approves this rezone, the subsequent preliminary plat application (PC-2145) can be heard, discussed, 
considered, with possible action to be taken.  
 
Staff Comments- 

Engineering Staff Comments: 
Note: No engineering improvements are required with this application. 
 
Water Supply and Distribution 
There is a public water main bordering the proposed parcel, a six (6) inch line running along the east side of 
North Glenhaven Drive. Any new building permit will require tying to the public water system as outlined in 
Municipal Code 43-32. 

Sanitary Sewerage Collection and Disposal 
There is a public sewer main adjacent to but not bordering the proposed parcel, an eight (8) inch line is 
approximately forty feet south from the southeast corner of the property. The existing sewer main previously 



Page 4                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2145 
 
located along the south side of the property is being abandoned. The area of request will be combined with the 
adjacent southern parcel and the newly formed lot will have sewer access along the southeast side of the new 
parcel. Any new building permit will require tying into the public sewer system as outlined in Municipal Code 
43-109.  

Streets and Sidewalks 
Access to the parcel is from North Glenhaven Drive. North Glenhaven Drive is classified as a local road in the 
2008 Comprehensive Plan.  Public road and sidewalk improvements are not required as part of this application.   
 
Previous concerns have been raised about the development’s impact on the intersection and the signal located 
there. The attached traffic study has been revised to evaluate the proposed car wash’s impact on the traffic flow 
through the signal. The increases to the p.m. peak traffic flows are noted and the applicant has brought along the 
traffic engineering firm that created and revised the report to provide further clarity about the numbers. 
 
Drainage and Flood Control, Wetlands, and Sediment Control 
The area of request is shown to be in an Area of Minimal Flood Hazard on Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) 
number 40109C0310H, dated December 18th, 2009. Public drainage and detention improvements are not 
required as part of this application.  

Easements and Right-of-Way 
No further easements or right of way would be required with this application. 

Fire Marshal’s Comments: 
- There are no fire code violations currently noted for the address listed 
- The property is required to meet and maintain the requirements of Midwest City Ordinances Section 15. 

 
Public Works’ Comments: 
Line Maintenance 
Water 

- Any required water main extension shall be a designed looped system to eliminate dead ends. Fire 
hydrant locations shall be install per Midwest City Municipal Code Section 15-22. 

- Water main extension plans shall be approved by Oklahoma Department of Environmental Quality 
(ODEQ) and the City of Midwest City prior to Line Maintenance approval of building permit(s). 

- Water meter(s) shall be installed in “Green Belt” per Midwest City Municipal Code Section 43-54. 
 
Sanitary Sewer 

- Sewer mains shall be installed in front easements.  
 
Sanitation  

- The property is required to meet and maintain Midwest City Ordinance No. 3427 (attached, pages 15-
16) regarding trash dumpster(s) and enclosure before Certificate of Occupancy can be approved.   

 
Stormwater 

- No additional comments with this case. 
 
Planning Division: 
Staff met with the applicant May 9, 2023 for a Pre-Development meeting.  



Page 5                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2145 
 
 
Per Municipal Code, because of the varied uses permitted, it is important to be separated as much as possible 
visually and physically from any nearby residential areas and to limit the harmful effects of increased traffic, 
noise, and general nonresidential activity which will be generated. 
 
Screening and landscaping requirements. Property abutting a residential district shall be screened and 
landscaped in accordance with all the provisions of 5.2 Screening and Landscaping. 
 
If this application is approved, the applicant’s subsequent preliminary plat application (PC-2146) can be heard 
and voted on by Council. 
 
Use types permitted by right within the Community Commercial zoning district: 

• 4.3.1. Public Service or Utility: Light 
• 4.3.2. Public Service or Utility: Moderate 
• 4.3.6. Low Impact Institutional: Neighborhood Related 
• 4.3.9. Cultural Exhibits 
• 4.3.10. Library Services and Community Centers 
• 4.3.11. Community Recreation: Restricted 
• 4.3.12. Community Recreation: General 
• 4.3.13. Community Recreation: Property Owners’ Association 
• 4.4.1. Administrative and Professional Office 
• 4.4.4. Alcoholic Beverage Retail Sales 
• 4.4.6. Animals: Grooming and Sales 
• 4.4.8. Animal Sales and Services: Kennels and Veterinary, General 
• 4.4.15. Building Maintenance Services 
• 4.4.16. Business Support Services 
• 4.4.17. Child Care Center and Adult Day Care Center 
• 4.4.18. Communication Services: Limited 
• 4.4.20. Construction Sales and Services 
• 4.4.21. Convenience Sales and Personal Services 
• 4.4.23. Eating Establishments: Drive-In 
• 4.4.24. Eating Establishments: Fast Foods 
• 4.4.26. Eating Establishments: Sit-Down, Alcoholic Beverages not Permitted 
• 4.4.29. Food and Beverage Retail Sales 
• 4.4.34. Funeral and Internment Services: Undertaking 
• 4.4.35. Gasoline Sales: General 
• 4.4.37. Health Clubs 
• 4.4.38. Laundry Services 
• 4.4.40. Medical Services: Restricted 
• 4.4.41. Medical Services: General 
• 4.4.42. Participant Recreation and Entertainment: Indoor Permitted 
• 4.4.45. Personal Services: Restricted 
• 4.4.46. Personal Services: General 
• 4.4.47. Personal Storage 
• 4.4.48. Repair Services: Consumer 



Page 6                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2145 
 

• 4.4.49. Research Services 
• 4.4.50. Retail Sales and Services: General  
• 4.4.53. Spectator Sports and Entertainment: Restricted 
• 4.4.57. Tourist Accommodations: Lodging 
• 4.4.58. Off-Street Parking: Accessory Parking 
• 4.4.59. Off-Street Parking: Commercial Parking 
• 4.5.8. Wholesaling, Storage and Distribution: Restricted 
• 4.7.6. Horticulture 

 
Action is at the discretion of the Planning Commission. 

Action Required: 
Approve or reject the ordinance to redistrict to Community Commercial District and a resolution to amend the 
Comprehensive Plan to Commercial for the property noted herein, subject to staff comments as found in the 
July 5, 2023 agenda packet and made part of PC-2145 file. 
 
Suggested Motion: 
 
“To approve the ordinance redistricting subject property to the Community Commercial zoning district and 
resolution to amend the Comprehensive Plan to Commercial, subject to Staff Comments found in the July 5, 
2023 Planning Commission agenda packet and made a part of the PC-2145 file.” 
 
Please feel free to contact my office at (405) 739-1223 with any questions. 
 
 
 

 

Emily Richey  

Current Planning Manager 

 

 



Page 7                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2145 
 

 



Page 8                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2145 
 

 



Page 9                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2145 
 

 



Page 10                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2145 
 

 



Page 11                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2145 
 

 



Page 12                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2145 
 

 



Page 13                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2145 
 

 



Page 14                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2145 
 

 



Page 15                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2145 
 



Page 16                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2145 
 



Page 17                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2145 
 

 



Page 18                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2145 
 

 



Page 19                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2145 
 

 



Page 20                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2145 
 

 



Page 21                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2145 
 

 



Page 22                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2145 
 

 



Page 23                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2145 
 

 



Page 24                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2145 
 

 



Page 25                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2145 
 

 



Page 26                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2145 
 

 



Page 27                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2145 
 

 



Page 28                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2145 
 

 



Page 29                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2145 
 

 



Page 30                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2145 
 

 



Page 31                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2145 
 

 



Page 32                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2145 
 

 



Page 33                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2145 
 

 



Page 34                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2145 
 

 



Page 35                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2145 
 

 



Page 36                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2145 
 

 



Page 37                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2145 
 

 



Page 38                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2145 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 39                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2145 
 

 



Page 40                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2145 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 41                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2145 
 

 



Page 42                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2145 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 43                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2145 
 

 



Page 44                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2145 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 45                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2145 
 

 



Page 46                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2145 
 

 



Page 47                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2145 
 

 



Page 48                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2145 
 

 



Page 49                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2145 
 

 



   
Community Development Department 
 
 

Emily Richey, Current Planning Manager 
Tami Anderson, Executive Assistant 

 

To:  Chairman and Planning Commission 

From:  Emily Richey, Current Planning Manager  

Date:  July 5, 2023 

Subject: (PC-2146) Public hearing, discussion, consideration, and possible action of approval of the 
Preliminary Plat of Glenhaven described as a tract of land lying in the Southwest Quarter (SW ¼) of Section 
Thirty-Four (34), Township Twelve (12) North, Range Two (2) West of the Indian Meridian in Oklahoma 
County, Oklahoma, being more particularly described as follows: Commencing at the Southwest corner of said 
Section 34; Thence N 89°51’43” E along the South line of said SW/4 a distance of 798.49 feet; Thence N 
00°36’11” W and parallel with the West line of said SW/4 a distance of 249.09 feet to the Point of Beginning; 
Thence continuing N 00°36’11” W and parallel to the West line of said SW/4 a distance of 140.70 feet; Thence 
89°23’49” E a distance 147.92 feet; Thence S 45°36’11” E a distance of 35.36 feet; Thence S 00°36’11” E and 
a distance of 115.70 feet; Thence S 89°23’49” W a distance of 172.92 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING. 

Executive Summary: This item is a request to a 
preliminary plat for one (1) parcel for the development 
of one (1) commercial lot. This item is in conjunction 
with the simultaneous application (PC-2145) request to 
rezone the tract to Community Commercial District 
(“C-3”), and is contingent upon the preceding case’s 
approval.  

The proposed lot has frontage on E. Reno Avenue.  

The applicant is to submit easement vacation before 
final plat can be approved. 

At the time of this writing, there has been one 
surrounding property owner in opposition to the 
preliminary plat due to drainage issues he says have 
been affecting his property. 

Both state and local public notification requirements were met. 

Action is at the discretion of the Planning Commission.  

Dates of Hearing: 
Planning Commission- July 5, 2023    
City Council- July 25, 2023 
 
Date of Pre-Development Meeting: 
May 9, 2023       
                                                                                                                                                                  
Council Ward: Ward 4, Sean Reed 

Owner: Bentwood Investments, LLC. 



Page 2                                                                                                                                                   July 6, 2023              
PC-2146 
 
Applicant: Grubbs Consulting, on behalf of owner 

Proposed Use: Carwash  

Preliminary Plat Expiration: If approved, expiration of preliminary plat will be 2 years from date of approval 
in accordance with Section 38.18.8. of the City of Midwest City’s Subdivision Regulations.  

Size: The subject property has a frontage of 115 feet along E. Reno Avenue, and a depth of 172 feet, and 
contains an area of 24,017 square feet, more or less.  

Development Proposed by Comprehensive Plan: 
Area of Request*: Office/Retail (“OR”)  
*At time of writing; if PC-2145 is approved, the Area of Request is now Commercial (“COM”). 
North- Single-Family Detached Residential (“SFD”) 
South- Office/Retail (“OR”) 
East- Office/Retail (“OR”) 
West- Office/Retail (“OR”) 
 
Zoning Districts: 
Area of Request*- Planned Unit Development (“PUD”) governed by Medium Density Residential District (“R-
MD”)  
*At time of writing; if PC-2145 is approved, the Area of Request is now Community Commercial District (“C-
3”) 
North- Planned Unit Development (“PUD”) governed by Medium Density Residential District (“R-MD”) 
South- Community Commercial District (“C-3”) 
East- Community Commercial District (“C-3”) 
West- Community Commercial District (“C-3”) 
 
Land Use: 
Area of Request- Vacant 
North- Residential 
South- House of Dank 
East- Residential 
West- Town and Country Shopping Center 
 
Comprehensive Plan Citation: 
The future zoning land use for the subject lot is Office/Retail (“OR”).  
 
Office/Retail Land Use 
Retail land uses areas are intended to provide for a variety of retail trade, personal, and business services and 
establishments. Retail establishments generally require greater visibility than do other types of non-residential 
land uses (e.g., office, commercial). 
 
Office uses include professional offices for lawyers, doctors, realtors, and other professionals. Office land uses 
are generally appropriate in all other non-residential areas of the City. Office development should be compatible 
with any adjacent residential area.  
 
History: 



Page 3                                                                                                                                                   July 6, 2023              
PC-2146 
 

1. (PC-2099) December 2021- Northern portion of subject property was included in rezone from 
Community Commercial District (“C-3”) to Planned Unit Development (“PUD”) governed by Medium 
Density Residential (“R-MD”).  

2. (PC-2124) September 2022- Northern portion of subject property was rezoned back to Community 
Commercial District (“C-3”). 

 
Next Steps: 
If Council approves this preliminary plat, the applicant will then proceed with the final plat process if all 
conditions are imposed at the time of approval of the preliminary plat, as applicable, have been satisfied.  
 
Staff Comments- 

Engineering Staff Comments: 
Note: No engineering improvements are required with this application. 
 
Water Supply and Distribution 
There is a public water main bordering the proposed parcel, a six (6) inch line running along the east side of 
North Glenhaven Drive. Any new building permit will require tying to the public water system as outlined in 
Municipal Code 43-32. 

Sanitary Sewerage Collection and Disposal 
There is a public sewer main adjacent to but not bordering the proposed parcel, and eight (8) inch line is 
approximately forty feet south from the southeast corner of the property. Any new building permit will require 
tying into the public sewer system as outlined in Municipal Code 43-109. 

Streets and Sidewalks 
Access to the parcel is from North Glenhaven Drive. North Glenhaven Drive is classified as a local road in the 
2008 Comprehensive Plan. Public road and sidewalk improvements are not required as part of this application. 

Drainage and Flood Control, Wetlands, and Sediment Control 
The area of request is shown to be in an Area of Minimal Flood Hazard on Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) 
number 40109C0310H, dated December 18th, 2009.  Public drainage and detention improvements are not 
required as part of this application.  

Easements and Right-of-Way 
No further easements or right of way would be required with this application. 

Fire Marshal’s Comments: 
- There are no fire code violations currently noted for the address listed 
- The property is required to meet and maintain the requirements of Midwest City Ordinances Section 15. 

 
Public Works’ Comments: 
Line Maintenance 
Water 

- Any required water main extension shall be a designed lopped system to eliminate dead ends. Fire 
hydrant locations shall be installed per the City of Midwest City’s Code of Ordinances Section 15-22. 

- Water main extension plans shall be approved by Oklahoma Department of Environmental Quality 
(ODEQ) and the City of Midwest City prior to Line Maintenance approval of building permit(s). 



Page 4                                                                                                                                                   July 6, 2023              
PC-2146 
 

- Water meter(s) shall be installed in “Green Belt” per City of Midwest City’s Code of Ordinances 
Section 43-54. 
 

Sanitary Sewer 
- Existing sewer line relocation detail has not been submitted. Sewer mains shall be install in front of 

easements. 
 
Sanitation 

- No additional comments with this case. 
 
Stormwater 

- No additional comments with this case.  
 
Planning Division: 
Staff met with the applicant May 9, 2023 for a Pre-Development meeting.  
 
The purpose of this preliminary plat is to determine the preliminary layout of the subdivision and ensure that the 
development plans are following the City of Midwest City’s Subdivision Regulations. 
 
If this proposed subdivision is approved, all development will be required to meet the requirements of the 
governing zone. 
 
Per Subdivision Regulation Code, Article III, Section 38-18.9. Preliminary plat expiration. 
(a) Two-year validity. 
 
(1) The approval of a preliminary plat shall remain in effect for a period of two (2) years following the date of 
approval, during which period the applicant shall submit and receive approval for construction plans and a 
final plat for the land area shown on the preliminary plat. 
 
(2) If construction plans and a final plat application have not been approved within the two-year period, 
the preliminary plat shall expire. 
 
(b) Phased developments—Partial construction plans and final plat. If construction plans and a final plat for 
only a portion of the land area shown on the preliminary plat are approved by the end of the two-year period, 
then the preliminary plat for the remainder of the land not included on the construction plans or final plat shall 
expire on such date. 
 
(c) Relationship to construction plans. A preliminary plat shall remain valid for two (2) years or the period of 
time in which approved construction plans are valid, whichever is greater. 
 
(d) Action on final plat. Should a final plat application be submitted within the two-year period, but not be acted 
upon by the city council within the two-year period, the preliminary plat shall expire unless an extension is 
granted as provided in section 38-18.9., Preliminary plat extension. 
 
(e)Void if not extended. If the preliminary plat is not extended as provided in section 38-
18.9., Preliminary plat extension, it shall expire and shall become null and void. 
 



Page 5                                                                                                                                                   July 6, 2023              
PC-2146 
 
Action is at the discretion of the Planning Commission. 

Action Required: 
Approve or reject the Glenhaven Preliminary Plat for the property noted herein, subject to staff comments as 
found in the July 5, 2023 agenda packet and made part of PC-2146 file. 
 
Suggested Motion: 
 
“To approve the Glenhaven Preliminary Plat for the property noted herein, subject to Staff Comments found 
in the July 5, 2023 Planning Commission agenda packet and made a part of the PC-2146 file subject to 
vacation of easement.” 
 
Please feel free to contact my office at (405) 739-1223 with any questions. 
 
 
 

 

Emily Richey  

Current Planning Manager 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 6                                                                                                                                                   July 6, 2023              
PC-2146 
 

 



Page 7                                                                                                                                                   July 6, 2023              
PC-2146 
 

 



Page 8                                                                                                                                                   July 6, 2023              
PC-2146 
 

 



Page 9                                                                                                                                                   July 6, 2023              
PC-2146 
 

 



Page 10                                                                                                                                                   July 6, 2023              
PC-2146 
 

 



Page 11                                                                                                                                                   July 6, 2023              
PC-2146 
 

 



Page 12                                                                                                                                                   July 6, 2023              
PC-2146 
 

 



Page 13                                                                                                                                                   July 6, 2023              
PC-2146 
 

 



Page 14                                                                                                                                                   July 6, 2023              
PC-2146 
 

 



Page 15                                                                                                                                                   July 6, 2023              
PC-2146 
 

 



Page 16                                                                                                                                                   July 6, 2023              
PC-2146 
 

 



Page 17                                                                                                                                                   July 6, 2023              
PC-2146 
 

 



Page 18                                                                                                                                                   July 6, 2023              
PC-2146 
 

 



Page 19                                                                                                                                                   July 6, 2023              
PC-2146 
 

 



Page 20                                                                                                                                                   July 6, 2023              
PC-2146 
 

 



Page 21                                                                                                                                                   July 6, 2023              
PC-2146 
 

 



Page 22                                                                                                                                                   July 6, 2023              
PC-2146 
 

 



Page 23                                                                                                                                                   July 6, 2023              
PC-2146 
 

 



Page 24                                                                                                                                                   July 6, 2023              
PC-2146 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



   
Community Development Department 
 
 

Emily Richey, Current Planning Manager 
Tami Anderson, Executive Assistant 

 

To:  Chairman and Planning Commission 

From:  Emily Richey, Current Planning Manager  

Date:  July 5, 2023 

Subject: (PC-2147) Public hearing, discussion, consideration, and possible action of approval of the 
Preliminary Plat of Urban Edge for the property described as the East Half (E/2) of the Northeast Quarter 
(NE/4) of the Southwest Quarter (SW/4) of the Southeast Quarter (SE/4) of Section Thirty-Five (35), Township 
Twelve (12) North, Range Two (2) West of the Indian Meridian, also addressed as 8610 - 8620 - 8700 E. Main 
St., Midwest City, OK 73130.  

Executive Summary: This item is a request to a preliminary plat for sixteen (16) total lots. There are three (3) 
existing structures on the property that are included in the plat, and the applicant, Mr. Emmanuel Acquaah, is 
proposing to subdivide the remaining property into thirteen (13) lots for a mix of duplexes/single-family homes. 

Engineering and Construction Services and Planning 
performed their review, and applicant has satisfied all 
necessary revisions requested by staff.  

Stormwater reviewed and discovered there is a drainage 
flume coming off of St. George’s Way, from the south 
on the west end that is not represented on the 
Stormwater Management Plan. Stormwater Manager is 
good with the applicant submitting an updated plan 
after this case is heard and prior to final plat approval. 

Both state and local public notification requirements 
were met. 

At the time of this writing, staff has not received any 
comments regarding this case. 

Action is at the discretion of the Planning Commission.  

Dates of Hearing: 
Planning Commission- July 5, 2023    
City Council- July 25, 2023 
 
Date of Pre-Development Meeting: 
May 1, 2023       
                                                                                                                                                                  
Council Ward: Ward 3, Vacant 

Owner: Don & Gail Laughlin 

Applicant: Emmanuel Acquaah 

Engineer: Jon Doyle, PE 



Page 2                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2147 
 
Proposed Use: Duplexes  

Size: The subject property has a frontage of 115 feet along E. Reno Avenue, and a depth of 172 feet, and 
contains an area of 24,017 square feet, more or less.  

Preliminary Plat Expiration: If approved, expiration of preliminary plat will be 2 years from date of approval 
in accordance with Section 38.18.8. of the City of Midwest City’s Subdivision Regulations.  

Development Proposed by Comprehensive Plan: 
Area of Request- Medium Density Residential 
North- Single Family Detached Residential 
South- Medium Density Residential 
East- Single Family Detached Residential 
West- Single Family Detached Residential 
 
Zoning Districts: 
Area of Request- Medium Density Residential District (“R-MD”) 
North- Single-Family Detached Residential District (“R-6”) 
South- High Density Residential District (“R-HD”) 
East- High Density Residential District with Special Use Permit (“R-HD” w/ “SUP”) 
West- Single-Family Detached Residential District (“R-6”) 
 
Land Use: 
Area of Request- Vacant 
North- Church; Residential (Single-Family) 
South- Residential (Duplexes) 
East- Residential (Duplexes) 
West- Residential (Single-Family) 
 
Comprehensive Plan Citation: 
The future zoning land use for the subject lots are Medium Density Residential (MDR) 
 
This use is representative of two-family, attached dwelling units, such as duplex units and townhomes. Medium 
density land uses often provide areas for “empty nesters” who may not want the maintenance of a large-lot 
single-family home and for young families who may find a townhome or duplex more affordable than a single-
family home. It is anticipated that new areas for medium density land use will be developed in the future. 
 

Municipal Code Citation: 
Sec. 38.18. – Preliminary Plat 
38.18.1. Purpose 

The purpose of a preliminary plat shall be to determine the general layout of the subdivision, the 
adequacy of public facilities needed to serve the intended development, and the overall compliance of 
the land division with applicable requirements of this Subdivision Ordinance.  
 

History: 
1. This property was zoned as R-1-D in the 1985 Zoning Atlas. 



Page 3                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2147 
 

2. (PC-2140) Property was rezoned to Medium Density Residential (“R-MD”) and the Comprehensive 
Plan was amended to Medium Density Residential (MDR). 

 
Next Steps: 
If Council approves this preliminary plat, the applicant will then proceed with the final plat process if all 
conditions are imposed at the time of approval of the preliminary plat, as applicable, have been satisfied.  
 
Staff Comments- 

Engineering Staff Comments: 
Note: This application is for the preliminary plat for the Urban Edge Addition located at 8610 E. Main Street. 
 
Section 38-18 in the Subdivision Regulations requires all existing and proposed utility lines and public 
improvements be reflected on the preliminary plat or accompanying plan. The proposed public utility line 
installations required with this application are shown on the plat, must be constructed and will be dedicated to 
the City prior to final plat application. 
 
Water Supply and Distribution 
There are public water mains bordering the proposed parcel, a six (6) inch line running along the north side of 
East Main Street and a six (6) inch line running along the south side of Patriot Drive terminated in the south east 
corner of the parcel.   
 
The applicant is proposing public water main extensions throughout the development serving all of the 
proposed lots. The proposed lines will connect to Patriot Drive in the southeast and will extend to the north side 
of the property connecting to East Main Street.  The lines will be within dedicated right of way reflected on the 
final plat. 
 
Connection to the public water supply system for domestic service is a building permit requirement per 
Municipal Code 43-32 for all new buildings. 
 
Sanitary Sewerage Collection and Disposal 
There are multiple public sewer mains servicing the proposed parcel, an eight (8) inch line running along the 
west side of the property and an eight (8) inch line running to the north east corner of the property.  

The applicant is proposing public sewer main extensions throughout the development serving all of the 
proposed lots. The proposed lines will extend to the west side of the property connecting to the existing eight 
(8) inch public sanitary sewer.  The lines will be within dedicated utility easements and right of way reflected 
on the final plat. 

Connection to the public sewer system for domestic service is a building permit requirement per Municipal 
Code 43-109 for all new buildings. 

Streets and Sidewalks 
Access to the parcel is from East Main Street and Patriot Drive. 
 
All of the lots located in the proposed development will front either onto East Main Street or onto new public 
roads the applicant proposes to construct within the development providing access to every proposed lot. 



Page 4                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2147 
 
There is currently no sidewalk along East Main Street. Sidewalk will be constructed along the existing frontage.  
The applicant is proposing sidewalk throughout the development along all of the proposed frontages and will 
connect to the Patriot Drive sidewalks located at the southeast corner of the parcel. 
 
Improvement plans for the streets and sidewalks must be prepared by a registered professional engineer and be 
submitted to staff for plan review and approval.  
 
Drainage and Flood Control, Wetlands, and Sediment Control 
The parcel currently generally sheet flows from the southwest part of the area of request to the northwest part 
draining into an existing drainage inlet located at the northwest corner of the site. 

The area of request is shown to be in an Area of Minimal Flood Hazard on Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) 
number 40109C0310H, dated December 18th, 2009. 

The applicant has proposed to construct a common detention pond to collect most of the onsite runoff.  The 
proposed roadways will collect the surface runoff and carry it to the detention facility.  The detention pond 
outlet will discharge runoff into underground storm pipe that will convey the water to the City’s existing 
drainage infrastructure located at the northwest corner of the site.  The proposed detention pond will create a net 
decrease in the flow rate of the water flowing to the City’s existing infrastructure. 

All future development on the proposed tracts must conform to the applicable requirements of Municipal Code 
Chapter 13, "Drainage and Flood Control." Resolution 84-20 requires that developers install and maintain 
sediment and/or erosion controls in conjunction with their construction activities. Any proposed development 
must conform to the applicable requirements of Municipal Code Chapter 43, "Erosion Control." Sediment 
control plans must be submitted to and approved by the city before any land disturbance is done on-site. The 
developer is responsible for the cleanup of sediment and other debris from drainage pipes, ditches, streets and 
abutting properties as a result of his activities.  

Easements and Right-of-Way 
The required easements and existing right of way for the area of request are illustrated on the preliminary plat 
and will be dedicated to the city when the final plat is filed.  

All easements and right of way dedications are to comply with Municipal Code Sections 38-43, 38-44, and 38-
45. 

Engineering Photos 



Page 5                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2147 
 

 



Page 6                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2147 
 

 

Fire Marshal’s Comments: 
- There are no fire code violations currently noted for the address listed as the site is currently not 

developed. 
- The property is required to meet and maintain the requirements of Midwest City Ordinances Section 15. 

 
Public Works’ Comments: 
Line Maintenance 
Water 



Page 7                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2147 
 

- Any required water main extension shall be a designed looped system to eliminate dead ends. Fire 
hydrant locations shall be installed per City of Midwest City’s Code of Ordinances Section 15-22. 

- Water main extension plans shall be approved by Oklahoma Department of Environmental Quality and 
the City of Midwest City prior to Line Maintenance of building permit(s). 

- Water meter(s) shall be installed in “green belt” per City of Midwest City’s Code of Ordinances Section 
43-54. 

 
Sanitary Sewer 

- Sewer main extension plans shall be approved by Oklahoma Department of Environmental Quality and 
The City of Midwest City prior to Line Maintenance approval of building permit(s). 
 

Sanitation 
- No further comments with this case. 

 
Stormwater 

- Drainage flume coming off of St. George’s Way from the south is not represented on the Stormwater 
Management Plan. 
 

Applicant’s engineer provided updated Stormwater Management Plan with the drainage flume, but there is 
one on the west end not indicated. Stormwater Manager is good with allowing the applicant to submit 
update after case is heard, but prior to submission of final plat.  

 
Planning Division: 
Staff met with the applicant May 1, 2023 for a Pre-Development meeting.  
 
The purpose of this preliminary plat is to determine the preliminary layout of the subdivision and ensure that the 
development plans are following the City of Midwest City’s Subdivision Regulations. 
 
If this proposed subdivision is approved, all development will be required to meet the requirements of the 
governing zone. 
 
Per Subdivision Regulation Code, Article III, Section 38-18.9. Preliminary plat expiration. 
(a) Two-year validity. 
 
(1) The approval of a preliminary plat shall remain in effect for a period of two (2) years following the date of 
approval, during which period the applicant shall submit and receive approval for construction plans and a 
final plat for the land area shown on the preliminary plat. 
 
(2) If construction plans and a final plat application have not been approved within the two-year period, 
the preliminary plat shall expire. 
 
(b) Phased developments—Partial construction plans and final plat. If construction plans and a final plat for 
only a portion of the land area shown on the preliminary plat are approved by the end of the two-year period, 
then the preliminary plat for the remainder of the land not included on the construction plans or final plat shall 
expire on such date. 
 



Page 8                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2147 
 
(c) Relationship to construction plans. A preliminary plat shall remain valid for two (2) years or the period of 
time in which approved construction plans are valid, whichever is greater. 
 
(d) Action on final plat. Should a final plat application be submitted within the two-year period, but not be acted 
upon by the city council within the two-year period, the preliminary plat shall expire unless an extension is 
granted as provided in section 38-18.9., Preliminary plat extension. 
 
(e)Void if not extended. If the preliminary plat is not extended as provided in section 38-
18.9., Preliminary plat extension, it shall expire and shall become null and void. 
 
Action is at the discretion of the Planning Commission. 

Action Required: 
Approve or reject the Urban Edge Preliminary Plat for the property noted herein, subject to staff comments as 
found in the July 5, 2023 agenda packet and made part of PC-2147 file. 
 
Suggested Motion: 
 
“To approve Urban Edge Preliminary Plat for the property noted herein, subject to Staff Comments found in 
the July 5, 2023 Planning Commission agenda packet and made a part of the PC-2147 file contingent upon 
the delineation of the before mentioned unrepresented drainage flume on the Stormwater Management 
Plan.” 
 
Please feel free to contact my office at (405) 739-1223 with any questions. 
 
 
 

 

Emily Richey  

Current Planning Manager 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 9                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2147 
 

 



Page 10                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2147 
 

 



Page 11                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2147 
 

 



Page 12                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2147 
 

 



Page 13                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2147 
 

 



Page 14                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2147 
 

 



Page 15                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2147 
 

 



Page 16                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2147 
 

 



Page 17                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2147 
 

 



Page 18                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2147 
 

 



Page 19                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2147 
 

 



Page 20                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2147 
 

 

 

 



Page 21                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2147 
 

 

 

 

 



Page 22                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2147 
 

 

 

 

 



Page 23                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2147 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



   
Community Development Department 
 
 

Emily Richey, Current Planning Manager 
Tami Anderson, Executive Assistant 

 

To:  Chairman and Planning Commission 

From:  Emily Richey, Current Planning Manager  

Date:  July 5, 2023 

Subject: (PC-2148) Public hearing, discussion, consideration, and possible action of approval of the Final  
Plat of 29th & Douglas Apartments described as a tract of land being a part of the Southwest Quarter (SW/4) of 
Section Twelve (12), Township Eleven (11) North, Range Two (2) West of the Indian Meridian, Midwest City, 
Oklahoma County, Oklahoma. 
 
Executive Summary: This case is for the approval of 
the 29th Street and Douglas Avenue Apartments final 
plat. 

The applicant has opted to submit bonds for cost of 
water and sewer installation instead of the initially 
agreed upon letter of credit to fulfill the water and 
sewer requirements which meets the provision as 
outlined in the Midwest City Municipal Code. 

The standard review for final plats was unable to be 
performed fully by staff from Engineering and 
Construction and Current Planning Division due to the 
construction of public improvements being satisfied 
after application is accepted.  

The floodway and floodplain are not indicated on the 
final plat and will need to be delineated prior to final 
approval. 

Oklahoma Department of Environmental Quality (“ODEQ”) has rejected both water and sewer plans submitted 
by applicant. Applicant has submitted the requested revisions, and is awaiting approval.  

Staff would like noted again that formal review for the submitted permits will not begin until the above 
requirements have been satisfied.  

Staff recommends approval contingent upon ODEQ’s acceptance of revisions and the delineation of the 
floodway and floodplain on final plat. 

At the time of this writing, staff has not received any comments regarding this case. 

Both state and local public notification requirements were met.  

Action is at the discretion of the Planning Commission.  

Dates of Hearing: 
Planning Commission- July 5, 2023    
City Council- July 25, 2023; August 11, 2023 (if item is unable to be heard July 25, 2023) 



Page 2                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2148 
 
Date of Pre-Development Meeting: 
May 5, 2023                       
                                                                                                                                                
Council Ward: Ward 2, Pat Byrne 

Owner: JLOU Properties, LLC 

Applicant: Mark W. Zitzow, AICP- Johnson & Associates 

Proposed Use: Apartments and commercial lot 

Size: The area of request has frontage along SE 29th Street as well as access off SE 25th Street, a depth of 
approximately 1600 feet, and an area of approximately 32.3 acres more or less. 

Development Proposed by Comprehensive Plan: 
Area of Request- Office/Retail 
North- Parks/Open Space 
South- Oklahoma City 
East- Office/Retail 
West- Office/Retail 
 
Zoning Districts: 
Area of Request- Planned Unit Development (“PUD”), governed by High Density Residential District (“R-
HD”) and Community Commercial District (“C-3”) 
North- High Density Residential District (“R-HD”), Single-Family Detached Residential District (“R-6”), and 
Community Commercial District (“C-3”) 
South- Oklahoma City 
East- Single-Family Detached Residential District (“R-6”); Manufactured Home Park District (“R-MH-2”) 
West- Single-Family Detached Residential District (“R-6”) 
 
Land Use: 
Area of Request- Vacant 
North- The Orchard Addition 
South- Oklahoma City 
East- Village Oaks Addition 
West- Finley’s Meadow Gardens 
 
Comprehensive Plan Citation: 
The future zoning land use for the subject property is High Density Residential Land Use (“HDR”) 
 
Traditional apartment-type units in attached living complexes characterize high density residential land use. 
There are currently several high density residential areas within Midwest City. It should be noted that medium 
density uses should also be permitted in any area designated for high density use. 
 
History: 

1. May 2022, Council approved an ordinance to redistrict the property from R-6, Single-Family 
Residential, to PUD, Planned Unit Development, governed by the R-HD, High Density Residential 
District, as well as a tract governed by C-3, Community Commercial District, and a resolution to amend 
the Comprehensive Plan from POS, Parks and Open Spaces, and OR, Office Retail, to HDR, High 
Density Residential.  



Page 3                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2148 
 

2. (PC-2134) Preliminary Plat was approved February 28, 2023.  
 

Next Steps: 
If Council approves this final plat, the review process for submitted building plans can proceed.  
 
Staff Comments- 

Engineering Staff Code Citations and Comments: 
Note: This application is for a final plat of the 29th and Douglas Apartments subdivision located off S.E. 29th 
Street. 
Public Improvements 
The requirements of the public improvements can be found in the Subdivision Regulations under: 
 
Sec. 38-19. - Final plat. 
Sec. 38-19.1. Purpose. 
The purpose of a final plat is to ensure: 
(a) Consistency with standards. That the proposed subdivision and development of the land is consistent with 
all standards of this Subdivision Ordinance pertaining to the adequacy of public facilities; 
(b) Provide for public improvements. That public improvements to serve the subdivision or development have 
been installed and accepted by the city or that provision for such installation has been made; and 
(c) Other requirements and conditions. That all other requirements and conditions have been satisfied or 
provided for to allow the final plat to be recorded 
 
The applicant has met provision (b) by providing the City financial documentation insuring the construction of 
the public improvements after this application is accepted. 
 
The final plat will not be heard until the Oklahoma Department of Environmental Quality’s review of the water 
and sewer extensions servicing the project is approved and complete. 
 
Fire Marshal’s Comments: 

- There are no fire code violations currently noted for the address listed as the site is currently not 
developed. 

- The property is required to meet and maintain the requirements of Midwest City Ordinances Section 15. 
 
Public Works’ Comments: 
Line Maintenance 
Water 

- Need Oklahoma Department of Environmental Quality (ODEQ) approved plans prior to review. 
- Any required water main extensions shall be a designed looped system to eliminate dead ends. Fire 

hydrant locations shall be installed per Midwest City Municipal Code Section 15-22. 
- Water main extension plans shall be approved by Oklahoma Department of Environmental Quality 

(ODEQ) and the City of Midwest City prior to Line Maintenance approval of building permit(s). 
- Water meter(s) shall be installed in “Green Belt” per Midwest City Municipal Code Section 43-54. 

 
Sanitary Sewer 

- Needing Oklahoma Department of Environmental Quality (ODEQ) approved plans that show public and 
private split. 



Page 4                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2148 
 

- Sewer main extension/relocation plans shall be approved by Oklahoma Department of Environmental 
Quality (ODEQ) and/or the City of Midwest City prior to Line Maintenance approval of building 
permit(s). 
 

Sanitation 
- No additional comments with this case. 

 
Stormwater 

- No additional comments with this case. 
 
Planning Division: 
Staff met with the applicant May 5, 2023 for a Pre-Development meeting.  
 
The floodway and floodplain are not indicated on the submitted final plat, they will need to be added.  
 
Planning will begin its formal review for the building permits that were submitted in October 2022 when all 
contingent requirements have been satisfied. 
 
Action is at the discretion of the Planning Commission. 

Action Required: 
Approve or reject the final plat for the 29th Street & Douglas Avenue apartments for the property noted herein, 
subject to staff comments as found in the July 5, 2023 agenda packet and made part of PC-2148 file. 
 
Suggested Motion: 
 
“To approve the final plat for the 29th Street and Douglas Avenue Apartments for the property noted herein, 
subject to Staff Comments found in the July 5, 2023 Planning Commission agenda packet and made a part 
of the PC-2148 file contingent upon receipt of approved water and sewer permits from Oklahoma 
Department of Environmental Quality and the delineation of the floodway and floodplain on final plat.” 
 
Please feel free to contact my office at (405) 739-1223 with any questions. 
 
 
 

  

 
 

Emily Richey  

Current Planning Manager 

 

 

 



Page 5                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2148 
 

 



Page 6                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2148 
 

 



Page 7                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2148 
 

 



Page 8                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2148 
 

 



Page 9                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2148 
 

 



Page 10                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2148 
 

 



Page 11                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2148 
 

 



Page 12                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2148 
 

 



Page 13                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2148 
 

 



Page 14                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2148 
 

 



Page 15                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2148 
 

 



Page 16                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2148 
 

 



   
Community Development Department 
 
 

Emily Richey, Current Planning Manager 
Tami Anderson, Executive Assistant 

 

To:  Chairman and Planning Commission 

From:  Emily Richey, Current Planning Manager  

Date:  July 5, 2023 

Subject: (PC-2149) Public hearing, discussion, consideration, and possible action of approval of the 
Replat of all of Lots 3 & 4 in Block 1 of Friendly Acres Addition, being more particularly 
described as follows: Commencing at the Northwest Corner of the Northwest Quarter (NW/4) of 
Section Five (5), Township Eleven (11) North, Range One (1) West of the Indian Meridian 
(I.M.), Oklahoma County, Oklahoma. 

Executive Summary: This item is a request to approve 
a replat of all of Lots 3 & 4 in Block 1 of Friendly 
Acres. This would subdivide the parcel into nine (9) 
lots; eight (8) buildable lots, and one (1) lot used for 
common area. 

There are currently no structures on the lot. If approved, 
all development standards and regulations for Single-
Family Detached (“R-6”) must be observed. 

The area of request is located in the east side collection 
area currently under evaluation.  The applicant has been 
advised that the City has this area under evaluation and 
that the impacts of further developments are unknown.  
Impacts found by the study will also need careful 
consideration as to the funding mechanisms and related 
proposed developments. 
 
Both state and local public notice requirements were met. 

At the time of this writing, staff has received two (2) comments from surrounding property owners, both are in 
favor of the proposal. One of the surrounding owners wanted to express the mailbox situation for the west side 
of street. Residents on the west side had erected mailboxes on their properties, the Post Office told them they 
would not deliver mail on west side, so they required the residents to put mailboxes on east side of the street. 
The resident calling is concerned with their mail not getting delivered because the applicant will have to take 
them down for his proposed development.  

Action is at the discretion of the Planning Commission.  

Dates of Hearing: 
Planning Commission- July 5, 2023    
City Council- July 25, 2023 
 
Date of Pre-Development Meeting: 
November 22, 2022                                                                                                                                              



Page 2                                                                                                                                                     July 5, 2023              
PC-2149 
 
Council Ward: Ward 3, vacant 

Owner: Bryan Funderburgh, Sycamore Custom Homes 

Applicant: Bryan Funderburgh 

Engineer: Keith Cook, PE 

Proposed Use: Single-family homes 

Size: The subject property has a frontage of 115 feet along E. Reno Avenue, and a depth of 172 feet, and 
contains an area of 24,017 square feet, more or less.  

Development Proposed by Comprehensive Plan: 
Area of Request- Single-Family Detached Residential 
North- Single-Family Detached Residential 
South- Single-Family Detached Residential 
East- Single-Family Detached Residential 
West- Office/Retail  
 
Zoning Districts: 
Area of Request- Single-Family Detached Residential (“R-6”) 
North- Single-Family Detached Residential (“R-6”) 
South- Single-Family Detached Residential (“R-6”) 
East- Single-Family Detached Residential (“R-6”) 
West- Single-Family Detached Residential (“R-6”) 
 
Land Use: 
Area of Request- Vacant 
North- Residential 
South- Residential 
East- Vacant; Residential 
West- Vacant; Residential 
 
Comprehensive Plan Citation: 
The future zoning land use for the subject lot is Single-Family Detached Residential  
 
Single-Family Detached (SFD) Land Use 
This use is representative of traditional, single-family detached dwelling units. Of the residential categories, it is 
recommended that single-family detached land use continue to account for the largest percentage. The areas 
designated for single-family detached residential land use are generally not adjacent to incompatible land uses, 
and are in proximity to existing single-family residential use. The City should strive for a range of lot sizes to 
develop, and should reinforce this by providing a choice of several single-family zoning districts with various 
lot sizes in the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
The proposed use is not supported by the Comprehensive Plan, therefore a resolution to the Comprehensive 
Plan must be made.  
 
Municipal Code Citation: 



Page 3                                                                                                                                                     July 5, 2023              
PC-2149 
 
3.6. – Replat 
3.6.1. Purpose & Applicability.  
 
A Replat of all or a portion of a recorded Plat may be approved without vacation of the recorded Plat, if the 
Replat meets the following criteria: 
 

(A) Replat Criteria 
a. The Replat is signed and acknowledged by the owners of the property being replatted; and 
b. The Replat does not propose to amend or remove any covenants or restrictions previously 

incorporated in the recorded plat. 
 

Please note, replats were eliminated with the adoption of new Subdivision Regulations, but applicant submitted 
application prior to new Subdivision Regulations, so had the option to proceed with replat or adhere to new 
regulations.   
 
History: 

1. The Plat of the Friendly Acres Addition was approved in 1937.  
 
Staff Comments- 

Engineering Staff Code Citations and Comments: 
Note: This application is for the replat of a portion of the Friendly Acres subdivision located at 200 Friendly 
Road. 
 
Section 38-21in the Subdivision Regulations requires all utility lines and public improvements be reflected on 
the replat or accompanying engineered construction plans. The proposed public installations must be 
constructed and must be dedicated to the city prior to the filing of the replat with the County. 

Water Supply and Distribution  
There is a public water main bordering the proposed parcel, an eight (8) inch main running along the west side 
of Friendly Road. Connection to the public water supply system for domestic service is a building permit 
requirement per Municipal Code 43-32 for all new buildings. 
 
Sanitary Sewerage Collection and Disposal  
There’s a public sewer main servicing the proposed parcel, an eight (8) inch main running along the west side of 
Friendly Road. 
 
The area of request is located in the east side collection area currently under evaluation.  The applicant 
has been advised that the City has this area under evaluation and that the impacts of further 
developments are unknown.  Impacts found by the study will also need careful consideration as to the 
funding mechanisms and related proposed developments. 
 
Connection to the public sewer system for domestic service is a building permit requirement per Municipal 
Code 43-109 for all new buildings. 
 
Streets and Sidewalks 
Access to the parcel is from Friendly Road. 



Page 4                                                                                                                                                     July 5, 2023              
PC-2149 
 
 
Friendly Road is an underdeveloped roadway that has no curbing. The applicant is proposing half street 
improvements along the frontage of Friendly Road. 
 
There is also currently no sidewalk along Friendly Road. The applicant is proposing a sidewalk along the 
frontage of Friendly Road. 
 
Improvement plans for the streets and sidewalks must be prepared by a registered professional engineer and be  
submitted to staff for plan review and approval.  
 
Drainage and Flood Control, Wetlands, and Sediment Control 
The parcel currently has an undeveloped secondary channel that bisects the area of request from the southwest 
to the northeast draining into a structure under East Reno Avenue. 
 
The area of request is shown to be in an Area of Minimal Flood Hazard on Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) 
number 40109C0330H, dated December 18th, 2009. 
 
The applicant has proposed to construct a detention pond to collect the onsite runoff.  The proposed roadway 
improvements will also collect surface runoff and carry it to the detention facility.  The pond discharges into the 
unimproved channel that drains to Reno Avenue.  The applicant is proposing doing landscape and channel work 
to the transition area to help promote flow and prevent standing water in the area.   
 
All future development on the proposed tracts must conform to the applicable requirements of Municipal Code 
Chapter 13, "Drainage and Flood Control." Resolution 84-20 requires that developers install and maintain 
sediment and/or erosion controls in conjunction with their construction activities. Any proposed development 
must conform to the applicable requirements of Municipal Code Chapter 43, "Erosion Control." Sediment 
control plans must be submitted to and approved by the city before any land disturbance is done on-site. The 
developer is responsible for the cleanup of sediment and other debris from drainage pipes, ditches, streets and 
abutting properties as a result of his activities.  
 
Easements and Right-of-Way  
The required easements and existing right of way for the area of request are illustrated on the preliminary plat 
and will be dedicated to the city when the replat is filed. 
 
A 25 foot, right of way sight triangle at the intersection of Friendly Drive and East Reno Avenue is required. 
 
All easements and right of way dedications are to comply with Municipal Code Sections 38-43, 38-44, and 38-
45. 
 
Fire Marshal’s Comments: 

- The property is required to meet and maintain the requirements of Midwest City Ordinances Section 15. 
 
 
Public Works’ Comments: 
Line Maintenance 
Water 

- No additional comments with this case. 



Page 5                                                                                                                                                     July 5, 2023              
PC-2149 
 
 
Sanitary Sewer 

- No additional comments with this case. 
 

Sanitation 
- No additional comments with this case. 

 
Stormwater 

- No additional comments with this case. 
 
Planning Division: 
Staff met with the applicant May 8, 2023 for a Pre-Development meeting.  
 
 
During Planning Division’s review, the following revisions were requested: 

- Show lot easements 
- Bearing for each lot needs to be shown. 
- The north/south bearing is not visible on submitted hard copy, please move it to where it can be seen. 

 
The applicant satisfied all the requested revisions. 
 
The proposed lots meet the minimum standard of 6,000 square feet. If this application is approved, the homes 
built on the lots must meet the requirements of the Zoning Ordinance, including, but not limited to; minimum 
house size of 1,200 square feet, 85% masonry exterior materials (100% facing the street), and 7’ side setbacks.  
 
Action is at the discretion of the Planning Commission. 

Action Required: 
Approve or reject the replat of all of Lots 3 & 4 in Block 1 of Friendly Acres subject to the staff comments as 
found in the July 5, 2023 agenda packet and made a part of PC-2149 file. 
 
Suggested Motion: 
 
“To approve the replat for R&B Acres for the property noted herein, subject to Staff Comments found in the 
July 5, 2023 Planning Commission agenda packet and made a part of the PC-2149 file.” 
 
 
Please feel free to contact my office at (405) 739-1223 with any questions. 
 
 
 

  

 

Emily Richey  

Current Planning Manager 



Page 6                                                                                                                                                     July 5, 2023              
PC-2149 
 

 



Page 7                                                                                                                                                     July 5, 2023              
PC-2149 
 

 



Page 8                                                                                                                                                     July 5, 2023              
PC-2149 
 

 



Page 9                                                                                                                                                     July 5, 2023              
PC-2149 
 

 



Page 10                                                                                                                                                     July 5, 
2023              
PC-2149 
 

 



   
Community Development Department 
 
 

Emily Richey, Current Planning Manager 
Tami Anderson, Executive Assistant 

 

To:  Chairman and Planning Commission 

From:  Emily Richey, Current Planning Manager  

Date:  July 5, 2023 

Subject: (PC-2150) Public hearing, discussion, consideration, and possible action of an ordinance to 
redistrict from Community Commercial District (“C-3”) to Medium-Density Residential (“R-
MD”) and a resolution to amend the Comprehensive Plan from Single-Family Detached 
Residential (“SFD”) to Medium-Density Residential (“MDR”). 

Executive Summary: The applicant, Mr. Al Sahli, is 
requesting to rezone the subject property from 
Community Commercial District (“C-3”) to Medium-
Density Residential, and a resolution to amend the 
Comprehensive Plan from Single-Family Detached 
Residential (“SFD”) to Medium-Density Residential 
(“MDR”). 

Mr. Sahli is proposing six (6), one-bedroom, one-story 
576 square foot units for residential rental properties. 
The exterior of the building(s) will be cohesive with the 
adjacent neighborhood. 

Applicant owns existing parking to the west of 
proposed development, and would like to add a few 
spots to the south side. Staff has verified the parking 
requirements for the businesses in the shared parking lot 
for subject property still fulfills City’s parking requirements. 

The conceptual site plan meets the development regulations for the Medium Density Residential zoning district.  

If rezone is approved, the applicant can submit for the necessary building permits. 

At the time of this writing, staff has received one phone call from a surrounding property owner regarding 
concerns of trash. Citizen voiced there are constant issues of trash surrounding the enclosure due to it not being 
closed and trash blowing around. Citizen thinks proposal will worsen the trash issue. 

Planning Division reached out to the Sanitation Department to monitor the situation. 

Both state and local notification requirements were met. 

Action is at the discretion of the Planning Commission.  

Dates of Hearing: 
Planning Commission- July 5, 2023    
City Council- July 25, 2023 
 
Date of Pre-Development Meetings: 



Page 2                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2150 
 
November 16, 2022 
January 4, 2023                                                                                                                               
 
Council Ward: Ward 1, Susan Eads 

Owner: Al Sahli; Air Depot Properties, LLC 

Applicant: Al Sahli; Air Depot Properties, LLC 

Proposed Use: Residential rental units 

Size: The subject property contains an area of 304,920 square feet, more or less.  

Development Proposed by Comprehensive Plan: 
Area of Request- Single-Family Detached Residential (“SFD”) 
North- Single-Family Detached Residential (“SFD”) 
South- Single-Family Detached Residential (“SFD”) 
East- Single-Family Detached Residential (“SFD”) 
West- Single-Family Detached Residential (“SFD”) 
 
Zoning Districts: 
Area of Request- Community Commercial District (“C-3”) 
North- Single-Family Detached Residential (“R-6”)  
South- Single-Family Detached Residential (“R-6”) 
East- Single-Family Detached Residential (“R-6”) 
West- Single-Family Detached Residential (“R-6”) 
 
Land Use: 
Area of Request- Vacant 
North- Residential 
South- Residential 
East- Residential 
West- Parking lot 
 
Comprehensive Plan Citation: 
The future zoning land use for the subject lot is SFD, Single-Family Detached Land Use. 
 
Single-Family Detached (SFD) Land Use 
This use is representative of traditional, single-family detached dwelling units. Of the residential categories, it is 
recommended that single-family detached land use continue to account for the largest percentage. The areas 
designated for single-family detached residential land use are generally not adjacent to incompatible land uses, 
and are in proximity to existing single-family residential use. The City should strive for a range of lot sizes to 
develop, and should reinforce this by providing a choice of several single-family zoning districts with various 
lot sizes in the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
The proposed use is not supported by the Comprehensive Plan, therefore a resolution to the Comprehensive 
Plan must be made.  
 
Municipal Code Citation: 



Page 3                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2150 
 
2.9. – R-MD, Medium Density Residential District 
2.9.1. General Description. This is a residential district to provide for medium density housing ranging from ten 
(10) to twenty (20) dwelling units per gross acre. The principal use of land is for townhouses and low-rise 
multifamily dwellings. 
 
Related recreational, religious, and educational uses normally located to service residential areas are also 
permitted to provide the basic elements of convenient, balanced, and attractive living areas. 
 
History: 

1. This property has been zoned Single-Family Detached Residential District since the adoption of the 
1985 zoning code. 

2. (PC-1915) The property was rezoned to Community Commercial District in September of 2017. 
 
Next Steps: 
If Council approves this rezone, the applicant can proceed with the submission of the appropriate building 
permits. 
 
Staff Comments- 

Engineering Staff Comments: 
Note: No engineering improvements are required with this application. 
 
Water Supply and Distribution 
There is a public water main bordering the proposed parcel, a six (6) inch line running along the south side of 
West Fairchild Drive. Any new building permit will require tying to the public water system outline in 
Municipal Code 43-32. 
 
Sanitary Sewerage Collection and Disposal 
There is a public sewer main servicing the proposed parcel, a six (6) inch line running along the north side of 
the property. Any new building permit will require tying into the public sewer system as outlined in Municipal 
Code 43-109. 

Streets and Sidewalks 
Access to the parcel is from West Fairchild Drive. West Fairchild Drive parallels the south side of the property 
and is classified as a local road in the 2008 Comprehensive Plan. Public road and sidewalk improvements are 
not required as part of this application.  

Drainage and Flood Control, Wetlands, and Sediment Control 
The area of request is shown to be in an Area of Minimal Flood Hazard on Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) 
number 40109C0310H, dated December 18, 2009. Public drainage and detention improvements are not required 
as part of this application. 

Easements and Right-of-Way 
No further easements or right of way would be required with this application. 

Engineering Photos 



Page 4                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2150 
 

 

 

Fire Marshal’s Comments: 

The property is required to meet and maintain the requirements of Midwest City Ordinances Section 15. 
 
Public Works’ Comments: 
Line Maintenance 
Water 

- Water meter(s) shall be installed in “Green Belt” per Midwest City Municipal Code Section 43-54. 
 



Page 5                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2150 
 
Sanitary Sewer 

- Sewer main is available to the North.  
 
Sanitation 

- The property is required to meet and maintain Midwest City Ordinance No. 3427 (attached, pages 11-
12) regarding trash dumpster(s) and enclosure before Certificate of Occupancy can be approved.   

- The City’s Solid Waste Manager would like to discuss with owner to propose extension of the current 
enclosure to accommodate two dumpsters side-by-side. 

 
Stormwater 

- No additional comments with this case. 
 
Planning Division: 
Staff met with the applicant November 16, 2022 and January 4, 2023 for a Pre-Development meeting.  
 
The conceptual plans show that the proposed project fits all development regulations within the Medium 
Density Residential District (“R-MD”) without needing any modifications, therefore, a Simplified Planned Unit 
Development (“SPUD”) is not needed. Formal review by applicable City departments will be conducted after 
plans have been submitted. 
 
Carburetor Alley is part of a Revitalization Plan for the Air Depot Corridor to promote walkability, community, 
and “keeping it local.” Mr. Sahli owns the property where Tropical Smoothie Café and The Catch are located, 
and expressed enthusiastic interest in partnering with the City for Carburetor Alley. His proposed units 
complement the plan. 
 
Action is at the discretion of the Planning Commission.   
 
Action Required: 
Approve or reject the ordinance to redistrict from Community Commercial District (“C-3”) to Medium Density 
Residential (“R-MD”) and to amend the Comprehensive Plan from Single-Family Detached Residential 
(“SFD”) to Medium Density Residential (“RMD”) for the property noted herein, subject to staff comments as 
found in the July 5, 2023 agenda packet and made part of PC-2144 file. 
 
Suggested Motion: 
 
“To approve the ordinance redistricting 227 W. Fairchild Drive to the Medium Density Residential zoning 
district, and a resolution to amend the Comprehensive Plan to Medium Density Residential use subject to 
Staff Comments found in the July 5, 2023 Planning Commission agenda packet and made a part of the PC-
2150 file.” 
 
Please feel free to contact my office at (405) 739-1223 with any questions. 
 

 

Emily Richey  
Current Planning Manager 



Page 6                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2150 
 

 



Page 7                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2150 
 

 



Page 8                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2150 
 

 



Page 9                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2150 
 

 



Page 10                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2150 
 

 



Page 11                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2150 
 



Page 12                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2150 
 

 



Page 13                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2150 
 

 



Page 14                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2150 
 

 



Page 15                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2150 
 

 



Page 16                                                                                                                                                   July 5, 2023              
PC-2150 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 


	July 5, 2023 Short Form Agenda - Copy
	5.2.23 - Minutes - Copy
	2142 PC Staff Report Final Draft - Copy
	2143 PC Staff Report Final Draft - Copy
	2144 PC Staff Report Final Draft - Copy
	2145 PC Staff Report Final Draft - Copy
	2146 PC Staff Report Final Draft - Copy
	2147 PC Staff Report Final Draft - Copy
	2148 PC Staff Report Final Draft - Copy
	2149 PC Staff Report Final Draft - Copy
	2150 PC Staff Report Final Draft - Copy

